
1

MEETING: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (REGULATORY, 
COMPLIANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES)

DATE: Tuesday 10th September, 2019

TIME: 6.30 pm

VENUE: Committee Room, Town Hall Bootle

Member

Councillor

Substitute

Councillor
Councillor Bradshaw (Chair)
Councillor Byrom (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Brodie - Browne
Councillor Doyle
Councillor Grace
Councillor Killen
Councillor Lewis
Councillor McCann
Councillor McKinley
Councillor Morris

Councillor McGinnity
Councillor Murphy
Councillor Sathiy
Councillor Myers
Councillor Roche
Councillor Roscoe
Councillor Shaw
Councillor Bennett
Councillor Thomas
Councillor Jones

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Paul Fraser
Senior Democratic Services Officer

Telephone: 0151 934 2068
Fax:
E-mail: paul.fraser@sefton.gov.uk

  

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



2

This page is intentionally left blank.



3

A G E N D A

1.  Apologies for Absence

2.  Declarations of Interest (Pages 5 - 6)
Members are requested to give notice of any disclosable 
pecuniary or personal interest    

An advice note on declaration of interests is attached

3.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 7 - 12)
Minutes of the meeting held on 18 June 2019

4.  Digital Inclusion Working Group – Update on 
Recommendations

(Pages 13 - 
22)

Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer

5.  Disposal of Surplus Council Owned Land/Asset 
Management Strategy
Presentation by the Head of Corporate Resources

6.  Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2019/20 (Pages 23 - 
42)

Report of the Head of Corporate Resources

7.  Members Welfare Reform Reference Group - Update (Pages 43 - 
44)

At its meeting held on 18 June 2019 the Committee resolved 
that the Head of Health and Wellbeing be requested to 
submit updates to each meeting of this Committee on the 
operation of the Members Welfare Reform Reference Group. 

In accordance with the above decision a copy of the most 
recent update is attached. 

8.  Work Programme 2019/20, Scrutiny Review Topics and 
Key Decision Forward Plan

(Pages 45 - 
70)

Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer

9.  Cabinet Member Report - June to August 2019 (Pages 71 - 
90)

Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer



This page is intentionally left blank



Declarations of Interest

Members are requested at a meeting where a disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest arises, which is not already included in their Register of Members' 
Interests, to declare any interests that relate to an item on the agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, he/she must withdraw 
from the meeting room, including from the public gallery, during the whole 
consideration of any item of business in which he/she has an interest, except where 
he/she is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of a dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest he/she must seek advice from the 
Monitoring Officer or staff member representing the Monitoring Officer to determine 
whether the Member should withdraw from the meeting room, including from the 
public gallery, during the whole consideration of any item of business in which 
he/she has an interest or whether the Member can remain in the meeting or remain 
in the meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL IN”.

1

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (REGULATORY, 
COMPLIANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES)

MEETING HELD AT THE BIRKDALE ROOM, TOWN HALL, 
SOUTHPORT

ON TUESDAY 18TH JUNE, 2019

PRESENT: Councillor Byrom (in the Chair) 
Councillors Doyle, Grace, Jones, Killen, Lewis, 
McCann, McKinley and Sathiy

ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Lappin

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from the Chair, Councillor Bradshaw 
and Councillors Brodie-Browne and Morris.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of disclosable pecuniary or personal interests were 
received.

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED: 

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 March 2019 be confirmed as a 
correct record.

4. “TOOL-KIT” FOR THE ARMED FORCES COVENANT 

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer that provided information, in accordance with the Committee’s 
Work Programme, of the latest position regarding the “Tool-Kit” for the 
Armed Forces Covenant and recommending a way forward.

The report indicated that the Armed Forces Covenant was a promise from 
the nation ensuring that those who served or who had served in the Armed 
Forces, and their families, were treated fairly in recognition of the 
sacrifices they made on behalf of the country; that Covenant was not 
designed to give the Armed
Forces, Veterans and their families’ preferential treatment compared with 
other citizens but should ensure that they got a fair deal and were not 
disadvantaged because of their Service; that Covenant relied on the 
government, communities, businesses, and individuals of the UK to 
actively support it in order to make a difference; and that Local Authorities 
were at the heart of that support group. The six councils in the Liverpool 
City Region had all signed the Covenant,
and this review examined how they were working hard to make sure that 
Servicemen and women, veterans and their families got a fair deal.

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (REGULATORY, 
COMPLIANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES) - TUESDAY 18TH JUNE, 
2019

2

The report concluded that the Committee had agreed during the last 
Municipal Year that a report be submitted on the “Tool-Kit” for the Armed 
Forces Covenant; that as reported at previous meetings the Committee 
had been advised that colleagues in the Liverpool City Region were 
preparing the tool-kit; and that this task had now been completed and the 
tool-kit had been circulated to Liverpool City Region local authorities. A 
copy of the tool-kit was attached as an appendix to this report.

Members of the Committee asked questions/commented on the following 
issues:

 The numbers of homeless veterans and the identification of 
veterans at risk of becoming homeless

 Work undertaken with the Veterans’ Pension Advisory Committee
 Governance arrangements associated with the Covenant and how 

such arrangements could be strengthened drawing on models seen 
elsewhere across the City Region 

RESOLVED:

That the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer and the Cabinet Member - 
Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services be requested to consider 
further the governance arrangements associated with the Covenant.

5. AREA COMMITTEES WORKING GROUP FINAL REPORT – 
UPDATE ON RECOMMENDATIONS 

Further to Minute No. 17 of 11 September 2018 the Committee considered 
the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer that provided a 
monitoring report setting out progress made in respect of the 
recommendations formulated by the Area Committees Working Group and 
approved by Cabinet.

The report indicated that Area Committees ceased to operate and were 
replaced with Community Forums; that Constituency Forums were 
subsequently replaced with “Community Chats”; that the Head of 
Communities supported the operation of the Community Chats; and that 
the first round of Community Chats were held at 6.30 p.m. on the dates set 
out below and were advertised on the Council’s website and via press 
releases to local news websites and newspapers.

Bootle -  27 February 2019 – Bootle Town Hall
Sefton Central – 7 March 2019 – Formby Professional Development 
Centre
Southport – 13 February 2019 – The Atkinson  

Appendix 1 to the report provided information compiled by the Head of 
Communities on the operation of the Community Chat events whilst 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (REGULATORY, 
COMPLIANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES) - TUESDAY 18TH JUNE, 
2019

3

Appendix 2 detailed views of Members of the Council on the first round of 
the events.    

Members of the Committee asked questions/commented on the following 
issues:

 The willingness of the Cabinet Member – Regulatory, Compliance 
and Corporate Services to look at different arrangements for 
different areas

 the responsibility of elected Members, as community leaders, to be 
innovative to engage local residents in the events

 the advertising and marketing of the events to achieve enhanced 
public attendance

 the lack of decision making powers delegated to the Community 
Chat events

RESOLVED: That

(1) the report setting out progress made against the recommendations 
formulated by the Area Committees Working Group and approved 
by Cabinet be noted; and

(2) the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer be requested to submit a 
further update report to the Committee in 12 months’ time.

6. WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20, SCRUTINY REVIEW TOPICS 
AND KEY DECISION FORWARD PLAN 

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer seeking the views of members on the draft Work Programme for 
2019/20, the identification of potential topics for scrutiny reviews to be 
undertaken by a Working Group(s) appointed by the Committee and the 
identification of any items for pre-scrutiny by the Committee from the Key 
Decision Forward Plan.

The report indicated that a potential topic for review had been suggested 
by the Head of Corporate Resources relating to “review and develop 
options for how the Council’s activities could ameliorate the impact of 
climate change with a view to integrating proposals in any future strategy 
or delivery plan”.

Members of the Committee asked questions/commented on the following 
issues:

 Associated with the reference to the air quality monitoring report on 
the Work Programme how new traffic schemes such as Brooms 
Cross Road had an adverse impact on pollution levels in adjacent 
communities

 The need to understand the role of all the services that the Council 
commissions and how they impacted on climate change

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (REGULATORY, 
COMPLIANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES) - TUESDAY 18TH JUNE, 
2019

4

RESOLVED: That

(1) the Work Programme for 2019/20, as set out in Appendix 1 to the 
report, be approved;

(2) the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board be requested to 
consider establishing a cross-cutting review to review and develop 
options for how the Council’s activities could ameliorate the impact 
of climate change with a view to integrating proposals in any future 
strategy or delivery plan together with ways to improve pollution 
levels associated with traffic management and highway issues; and

(3) the Key Decision Forward Plan as set out in Appendix 3 to the 
report, be noted.

7. CABINET MEMBER REPORT - MARCH TO JUNE 2019 

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer that included the most recent report from the Cabinet Member – 
Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services.   

Councillor Lappin, Cabinet Member – Regulatory, Compliance and 
Corporate Services was in attendance to answer any questions regarding 
her report. 

Members of the Committee asked questions/made comments on the 
following issues:

 In connection with the Communications Team the encouragement 
of people to vote and the provision of instant live coverage on local 
elections night; and the experimental animation video to promote 
important messages that balanced welcoming thousands of people 
to Sefton over busy bank holidays whilst encouraging people to act 
respectfully and responsibly

 The percentage of Sefton residents who were registered to vote
 The balanced budget forecast position
 Statistics associated with the DWP funded Citizens Advice scheme, 

known as “Help to Claim” to provide support to residents who 
needed help with their initial claim for Universal Credit

 The operation of the Members Welfare Reform Reference Group  

RESOLVED:  That

(1)     the update report from the Cabinet Member – Regulatory, 
Compliance and Corporate Services be noted; 

(2) the Head of Health and Wellbeing be requested to submit updates 
to each meeting of this Committee on the operation of the 
Members Welfare Reform Reference Group; and

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (REGULATORY, 
COMPLIANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES) - TUESDAY 18TH JUNE, 
2019

5

  
(3) Councillor Lappin be thanked for her attendance at the meeting.

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
(Regulatory, 
Compliance and 
Corporate Services

Date of Meeting:  10 September 2019

Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
(Regeneration and 
Skills)

17 September 2019

Subject: Digital Inclusion 
Working Group – 
Update on 
Recommendations

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Cabinet Portfolio: Cabinet Member – Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate 
Services
Cabinet Member – Regeneration and Skills

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer 

Is this a Key 
Decision?

No Is it included in the Forward Plan? No

Exempt/Confidential  No 

Purpose/Summary

To provide a monitoring report setting out progress made against each of the 
recommendations formulated by the Digital Inclusion Working Group and approved by 
Cabinet.

Recommendation: 

That the report setting out progress made against each of the recommendations 
formulated by the Digital Inclusion Working Group and approved by Cabinet be noted.

Reasons for the Recommendation:
To comply with a decision of Cabinet to submit monitoring reports on a six-monthly basis 
setting out progress made against each of the recommendations.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 
No alternative options were considered. Cabinet has requested the submission of 
monitoring reports. 

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



There are no financial implications arising for the Council as a direct result of this 
report. The implementation of recommendations that result in efficiency savings 
and any necessary financial investment will be the subject of separate reports. 

(B) Capital Costs
There are no financial implications arising for the Council as a direct result of this 
report. The implementation of recommendations that result in efficiency savings 
and any necessary financial investment will be the subject of separate reports.

Implications:

The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out below:

Financial

Legal

Human Resources

Equality
1. No Equality Implication

2. Equality Implications identified and mitigated

3. Equality Implication identified and risk remains

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose
Protect the most vulnerable: 
Digital inclusion is a principal and approach that aims to ensure that people have the 
capability to use the internet to do things that benefit them on a day to day basis - 
whether they be individuals, businesses or other entities e.g. the voluntary sector.
Likewise digital inclusion aims to reduce digital exclusion and the digital divide that can 
exist within society for a variety of reasons
The government’s Information Economy Strategy called for greater focus on digital 
inclusion in order to:
• help businesses make smart use of information technology and data;
• ensure citizens benefit from the digital age; and
• underpin economic growth
Digital inclusion will be one of the areas that the Council will seek to contribute to and 
enable within the Borough of Sefton and as such help residents to improve their 
chances to gain employment.  
Facilitate confident and resilient communities: As above
Commission, broker and provide core services: As above
Place – leadership and influencer: As above
Drivers of change and reform: As above
Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: As above
Greater income for social investment: As above 
Cleaner Greener: None directly associated with this report



Page 14

Agenda Item 4



Impact of the Proposals on Service Delivery:

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD 5734 /19) has been consulted and has no 
comments on the report  
The Chief Legal and Democratic Officer (LD4858/19) is the author of this report
The Head of Economic Growth and Housing
Sefton CVS
Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 

Implementation Date for the Decision

Following the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 

Contact Officer:  Paul Fraser
Tel: 0151 934 2068
Email: paul.fraser@sefton.gov.uk

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 At its meeting held on 13 June 2017 the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services) approved the establishment of 
a Joint Working Group. The commencement of the Working Group was deferred 
to enable the objectives of the ICT Development Programme to be progressed 
and thereafter aspects of the Programme to be included in the Working Group’s 
Scoping Document to review the topic of Digital Inclusion. The objectives of the 
Working Group were as follows:

 Identify the opportunity for the Council in supporting and enabling Digital 
Inclusion within the Borough of Sefton and the wider City Region;

 Identify how this can feed into the Councils future ICT and Digital 
Strategies;

 Confirm the strategic themes that should be addressed as part of this work 
e.g. connectivity and skills; 

 Identify potential council activities that could be provided on a more digital 
basis and the enabling activity that will be required to support this; and

 proactively engaging with the Combined Authority and their 
advisors/consultants to ensure that opportunities identified for Sefton are 
incorporated in to the Liverpool City Region Digital Infrastructure Action 
Plan to ensure positive outcomes for the borough and its constituent 
communities

it was noted that all proposals would need to take account of resource 
requirements and be within the parameters of the current Medium Term Financial 
Plan.

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



1.2 Accordingly, the Working Group met on numerous occasions to gather evidence 
and produce its Final Report Because of the cross-cutting nature of the Working 
Group the Final Report was also considered by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (Regeneration and Skills). Approval of the Final Report and 
associated recommendations was given by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services), Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (Regeneration and Skills) and Cabinet at their meetings held 
on 11 September 2018, 6 November 2018 and 6 December 2018 respectively. 
The approved recommendations are set out below: 

1. The Working Group was impressed with the Visitor Economy (VE) 
‘Passport to Success’ scheme aimed at college students across the 
Liverpool City Region coming into the tourism industry; whereby students 
are able to achieve a bronze, silver or gold passport standard to provide 
them with a range of opportunities to either gain quality work experience, 
an interview, apprenticeship or a full-time job. 

The Working Group, at its meeting held on 23 May 2018 acknowledged 
that literary and numeracy skills should be embedded as a priority along 
with digital skills. 

Accordingly, it is recommended that: 

(A) The Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Employment 
and Skills Board be requested to consider the development of 
a Digital Skills Passport Scheme (incorporating numeracy, 
literacy and communication skills) to help Sefton residents to 
gain future employment, via the Learning and Skills budget to 
be devolved from 2019; and

(B) Sefton Council, via Sefton@Work, in conjunction with local 
organisations such as Sefton Community Learning Service, 
work with the Liverpool City Region with the aim of exploring 
the application of such a Skills Passport for the benefit of 
Sefton employers and residents;

2. Using the Poverty Modelling and Digital Inclusion “Mosaic” data, areas of 
high unemployment be targeted to enable those Sefton residents 
excluded from the labour market to develop their ICT skills to improve 
their opportunities for gaining future employment;  
 

3. To facilitate the above the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority be 
requested to devolve sufficient funding to Sefton Council to appoint a 
project worker with the clear objectives of: 

(A) Working with local employers to map ICT/digital skills;

(B) Working with local partners such as Sefton Community 
Learning Service to develop and deliver bespoke training 
programmes to target residents in the areas identified in the 
Poverty Modelling and Digital Inclusion “Mosaic” data; 

Page 16

Agenda Item 4

http://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/moderngov/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Digital%20Inclusion%20Working%20Group%20-%20October%202018&ID=2564&RPID=23588411


(C) Identifying, using the data from the Poverty Modelling and 
Digital Inclusion “Mosaic”, a number of residents who would 
benefit from and be able to undertake training as referred to in 
3. (B) above; and

(D) Working with local employers to develop a compact agreement 
to enable those residents who successfully complete the 
bespoke training programme(s) to gain relevant employment;  
 

4. If further opportunities arise for a roll out of the Include-IT project and to 
support the objectives of recommendation 2 then Sefton CVS be 
requested to consider such roll out to the priority areas identified within 
the Poverty Modelling and Digital Exclusion document; and

5. the Head of Regulation and Compliance be requested to submit a 
monitoring report to the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Resources to be 
held on 5 March 2019, setting out progress made against each of the 
recommendations set out in the report and that thereafter, monitoring 
reports be submitted to the Committee on a six-monthly basis.

1.3 In accordance with recommendation (5) above the table attached to the report 
sets out progress made against each of the recommendations.

2. Other Developments

2.1 The Head of Economic Growth and Housing has advised that, additional to the 
responses to the recommendations the following actions will be progressed:

 Creation of a Sefton digital Plan, encompassing and harnessing the 
benefits of improved digital infrastructure, maximising and building upon 
the Sefton digital Strategy, connecting people and places.

 Sefton integral and playing a major role supporting the delivery of the 
Liverpool City Region Digital Connectivity Programme

 Maximising the benefits of Sefton’s hidden assets.
 Using digital to create better connected Town Centres.

“To create and deliver transformative economic growth, by deploying and 
exploiting the best possible – digital thinking and practical application for and 
across Sefton”

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



PROGRESS ON RECOMMENDATIONS ARISING FROM THE DIGITAL INCLUSION WORKING GROUP

Recommendation Progress Made

The Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Employment and 
Skills Board be requested to consider the development of a Digital 
Skills Passport Scheme (incorporating numeracy, literacy and 
communication skills) to help Sefton residents to gain future 
employment, via the Learning and Skills budget to be devolved 
from 2019

Correspondence has been received from Frank Rogers, Chief 
Executive of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority. The 
following comments have been made:

“I am pleased to report that the we have now published an 
updated Liverpool City Region Digital & Creative Skills for Growth 
Action Plan, a key element of which is a commitment for the 
Combined Authority to establish a Digital Skills Partnership to 
enhance collaboration and agree a Digital Skills Passport for the 
whole City Region.

We look forward to Sefton Council’s engagement with this 
Liverpool City Region Digital Skills Partnership, which will also 
focus on:
• Map provision using LCR Learn as basis.
• Promoting diverse role models in the tech. sector
• Better promoting engagement within digital inclusion provision
• Evaluating existing engagement delivery, and identifying both 

targeting and progression gaps
• Considering how to ensure tutors and teachers are kept up to 

date with tech development
• Working with the National Digital Skills Partnership to ensure 

that curricula and apprenticeship standards required by 
employers are in place.

• Developing future digital trends labour market information for 
all sectors

• Developing Careers Education, Information, Advice and 
Guidance to include digital fusion job roles.

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 4



Linked to the above, we are looking at collective and collaborative 
City Region wide skills development solutions, rather than by 
devolving funding to individual Local Authorities. In this regard, I 
would also draw your attention to the positive recent extension of 
the Big Lottery and ESF-funded Include-IT Mersey project 
delivered by a consortium led by Sefton CVS. This will be able to 
use the information generated by the Poverty Modelling and Digital 
Inclusion “Mosaic” data in order to identify need across Liverpool 
City Region, and target digital inclusion activities accordingly.

Please also note that Sefton Council has been represented form 
its outset on the CA-convened “Core Group” that brings together 
representatives from all the LCR Local Authorities. This has 
hitherto focused on development of the pan-LCR core fibre 
network project, however its remit may be extended in the future to 
look at the wider digital agenda”.

Sefton Council, via Sefton@Work, in conjunction with local 
organisations such as Sefton Community Learning Service, work 
with the Liverpool City Region with the aim of exploring the 
application of such a Skills Passport for the benefit of Sefton 
employers and residents

The Head of Economic Growth and Housing has advised that 
“Sefton Council is a recipient of Adult Education Budget which is 
used to support the Sefton Adult Community Learning Service. 
With effect from August 2019, this funding has been incorporated 
into the LCR Devolution deal on employment and skills, and 
therefore the accountability lead for this function will sit with the 
LCR Combined Authority from this year. 

In this context, Sefton has been successful in securing pilot 
funding from the LCR Combined Authority to develop a new 
project which will focus on the development of English, maths and 
digital skills featuring a partnership approach between the Adult 
Community Learning Service and Sefton@work. The aim of this 
pilot is to flag up alternative delivery mechanisms to promote the 
digital inclusion of learners and enhance their employability, 
working with employers across a number of different occupational 
sectors to progress the concept of the “digital passport” identified 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 4



by the working Group. 
The outcomes of the pilot will be learning points which will be 
evaluated by the Combined Authority as part of the wider 
development on digital inclusion and will be fed into the 
architecture of future skills programming.

Furthermore, InvestSefton, as part of its ongoing business support 
activities, have delivered workshops to businesses to help them 
maximise the benefits of digital technology including:

• Facebook advertising
• Google advertising platforms
• Video production
• Social media branding and marketing”.

Using the Poverty Modelling and Digital Inclusion “Mosaic” data, 
areas of high unemployment be targeted to enable those Sefton 
residents excluded from the labour market to develop their ICT 
skills to improve their opportunities for gaining future employment

Correspondence has been received from the Chief Executive of 
Sefton CVS which states that:

“Sefton CVS have just recently received notification that the 
Building Better Opportunities Digital Inclusion programme for the 
LCR Region has been extended until June 2021. We have been 
awaiting confirmation of this news for a number of weeks. 

Further to your correspondence, I can confirm that Sefton CVs has 
included Ravenmeols, Ford and Derby Wards in the proposed 
delivery going forward focused on the eligible targeted recipients 
in the overall programme and in line with the Poverty Modelling 
and Digital Exclusion document referred to in your letter”

To facilitate the above the Liverpool City Region Combined 
Authority be requested to devolve sufficient funding to Sefton 
Council to appoint a project worker with the clear objectives of: 

(A) Working with local employers to map ICT/digital skills;

As referred to above in the response of Frank Rogers, Chief 
Executive of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority, the 
following comments were made:

“Linked to the above, we are looking at collective and collaborative 

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 4



(B) Working with local partners such as Sefton Community 
Learning Service to develop and deliver bespoke 
training programmes to target residents in the areas 
identified in the Poverty Modelling and Digital Inclusion 
“Mosaic” data; 

(C) Identifying, using the data from the Poverty Modelling 
and Digital Inclusion “Mosaic”, a number of residents 
who would benefit from and be able to undertake 
training as referred to in 3. (B) above; and

(D) Working with local employers to develop a compact 
agreement to enable those residents who successfully 
complete the bespoke training programme(s) to gain 
relevant employment;  
 

City Region wide skills development solutions, rather than by 
devolving funding to individual Local Authorities. In this regard, I 
would also draw your attention to the positive recent extension of 
the Big Lottery and ESF-funded Include-IT Mersey project 
delivered by a consortium led by Sefton CVS. This will be able to 
use the information generated by the Poverty Modelling and Digital 
Inclusion “Mosaic” data in order to identify need across Liverpool 
City Region, and target digital inclusion activities accordingly.

Please also note that Sefton Council has been represented form 
its outset on the CA-convened “Core Group” that brings together 
representatives from all the LCR Local Authorities. This has 
hitherto focused on development of the pan-LCR core fibre 
network project, however its remit may be extended in the future to 
look at the wider digital agenda”.

If further opportunities arise for a roll out of the Include-IT project 
and to support the objectives of recommendation 2 then Sefton 
CVS be requested to consider such roll out to the priority areas 
identified within the Poverty Modelling and Digital Exclusion 
document

Correspondence has been received from the Chief Executive of 
Sefton CVS which states that:

“Sefton CVS have just recently received notification that the 
Building Better Opportunities Digital Inclusion programme for the 
LCR Region has been extended until June 2021. We have been 
awaiting confirmation of this news for a number of weeks. 

Further to your correspondence, I can confirm that Sefton CVs has 
included Ravenmeols, Ford and Derby Wards in the proposed 
delivery going forward focused on the eligible targeted recipients 
in the overall programme and in line with the Poverty Modelling 
and Digital Exclusion document referred to in your letter”

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
(Regulatory, 
Compliance and 
Corporate Services)

Date of Meeting: Tuesday 10 
September 2019

Subject: Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2019/20

Report of: Head of Corporate 
Resources

Wards Affected: (All Wards);

Portfolio: Cabinet Member - Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate 
Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

Yes Included in 
Forward Plan:

Yes

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To inform Overview and Scrutiny of: -
1) The current forecast revenue outturn position for the Council for 2019/20;
2) The current forecast on Council Tax and Business Rates collection for 2019/20; 

and,
3) The monitoring position of the Council’s capital programme to the end of July 

2019, the forecast expenditure to year end, variations against the approved 
budgets and an explanation of those variations for consideration by Members. 
Updates to spending profiles and proposed amendments to capital budgets 
necessary to ensure the efficient delivery of capital projects are also presented.

Recommendation(s):

Overview and Scrutiny is recommended to: -

Revenue Budget
1) Note the current forecast revenue outturn position for 2019/20 and the current 

position relating to delivery of savings included in the 2019/20 revenue budget;
2) Note the mitigating measures being used to ensure a balanced forecast outturn 

position; 

Capital Programme

3) Note the updates to the spending profiles within the capital programme across 
financial years (paragraph 5.1.1).

4) Note the latest capital expenditure position as at 31 July 2019 to date of £3.3m 
(paragraph 5.2.2) with the latest full year forecast being £26.7m (paragraph 5.3.1).

5) Note explanations of variances to project budgets (paragraph 5.3.2).

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



6) Note that capital resources will be managed by the Head of Corporate Resources 
to ensure the capital programme remains fully funded and that capital funding 
arrangements secure the maximum financial benefit to the Council. 

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To ensure Overview and Scrutiny are informed of the forecast outturn position for the 
2019/2020 Revenue Budget as at the end of July 2019, including delivery of agreed 
savings, and to provide an updated forecast of the outturn position with regard to the 
collection of Council Tax and Business Rates.  

To keep members informed of the progress of the Capital Programme against the 
profiled budget for 2019/20 and agreed allocations for future years. 

To keep members informed of any changes that are required in order to maintain a 
relevant and accurate budget profile necessary for effective monitoring of the Capital 
Programme and of any updates to funding resources so that they can be applied to 
capital schemes in the delivery of the Council’s overall capital strategy.

In March 2017 Council approved a three-year budget plan to March 2020. The final year 
of this plan was revised in February 2019 as part of the process of setting the 2019/20 
budget.  The Council is in the final year of the budget plan and remains confident its 
strategic approach to budget planning alongside good financial management and 
extensive community engagement means that the plan continues to develop on solid 
foundations; it remains flexible and will secure the future sustainability to 2020 and 
beyond.  However, in year demand for social care services is currently resulting in the 
costs for these services significantly exceeding the budget.  If further budget pressures 
are identified between now and the end of the year additional remedial action will be 
required to bring the overall budget into balance.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)
N/A

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs
The report indicates that for 2019/20 there is currently a forecast deficit of £2.515m. 
Mitigating measures have been identified in order to meet this deficit and are detailed 
within the report. 

(B) Capital Costs
The Council’s capital budget in 2019/20 is £26.030m. As at the end of July 2019, 
expenditure of £3.343m has been incurred and a full year outturn of £26.714m is 
currently forecast.

Implications of the Proposals:

The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out as follows:

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
There is currently a budget shortfall of £2.515m forecast for 2019/20 and as reported 
within the first monitoring report of the year, mitigating actions have been identified in 
order to address this. However, it should be noted that significant pressure and risk 
remains in four key business areas, namely Adults and Children’s Social Care, 
Education Excellence and Locality Services.  These budgets may experience further 
demand pressure between now and the end of the year and further mitigations and 
remedial actions will be required in such an eventuality.

Legal Implications:
None

Equality Implications:
None

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:
Effective Financial Management and the development and delivery of sustainable annual 
budgets support each theme of the Councils Core Purpose.

Protect the most vulnerable:
See comment above

Facilitate confident and resilient communities:
See comment above

Commission, broker and provide core services:
See comment above

Place – leadership and influencer:
See comment above

Drivers of change and reform:
See comment above

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:
See comment above

Greater income for social investment: 
See comment above

Cleaner Greener:
See comment above

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations
The Head of Corporate Resources is the author of the report (FD 5756/19)

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



The Chief Legal and Democratic Officer has been consulted and has no comments on 
the report (LD 4880/19).

(B) External Consultations 
N/A

Implementation Date for the Decision
Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Paul Reilly
Telephone Number: Tel: 0151 934 4106
Email Address: paul.reilly@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

APPENDIX A – Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2021/22

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



1.     Introduction
 
1.1 In March 2017, Council approved a three-year budget plan to March 2020. The 

final year of this plan was revised in February 2019 as part of the process of the 
Council setting the 2019/20 budget.  This report updates the forecast revenue 
outturn position for 2019/20, including the delivery of savings included in the 
2019/20 budget.

1.2 The report also outlines the current position regarding key income streams for the 
Authority, namely Council Tax and Business Rates. Variations against expected 
receipts in these two areas will also affect the Council’s financial position in future 
years. 

1.3 The capital section of the report informs members of the latest estimate of capital 
expenditure for 2019/20 and updates forecast expenditure for 2020/21, 2021/22 
and future years. Proposed increases to the capital budget are presented in section 
5.1. Sections 5.2 and 5.3 review progress of the capital programme. Finally, section 
5.12 confirms that there are adequate levels of resources available to finance the 
capital programme.

2. Summary of the Forecast Outturn Position as at the end of July 2019
 

1.0 Members will be provided with updates of the Council’s forecast financial position 
at each meeting during this financial year. Significant pressures have been 
identified in several service areas, particularly Children’s Social Care, Locality 
Services and Home to School Transport. The latest forecast of service expenditure 
indicates an overspend of £2.515m.  The table below highlights the variations:

Budget Forecast 
Outturn

Variance Previously 
Reported 
Position

Movement 
since last 

month
£m £m £m £m £m

Services
Strategic Management 3.245 3.245 0.000 0.000 0.000

Strategic Support Unit 2.723 2.723 0.000 0.000 0.000

Adult Social Care 96.765 96.765 0.000 0.000 0.000
Children's Social Care 33.356 34.348 0.992 *0.781 0.211
Communities 19.535 19.535 0.000 0.000 0.000
Corporate Resources 4.800 4.720 -0.080 -0.132 0.052
Economic Growth & Housing 6.041 6.041 0.000 0.133 -0.133
Education Excellence 9.859 10.124 0.265 *0.424 -0.159
Health & Wellbeing 18.060 18.005 -0.055 -0.045 -0.010
Highways & Public 
Protection

11.192 11.192 0.000 0.234 -0.234

Locality Services 13.809 13.809 0.000 *0.464 -0.464

Total Service Net 
Expenditure

219.385 220.507 1.122 1.859 -0.737

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



* Note that the Previously Reported Position has been adjusted to reflect the allocation of 
the Provision relating to 2018/19 Service Pressures to individual services. 

1.1 The key forecast variations in the outturn position, including any significant 
variations from the June position reported to Cabinet, are as follows: -

 Children’s Social Care (£0.992m net overspend, increase of £0.211m) – The 
Placement and Packages budget overspent by £5.612m in 2018/19.  The 
equivalent forecast overspend in 2019/20 is £6.143m due to the increase in Looked 
After Children since the end of 2018/19, from 525 to 535, and the full year impact of 
new cases from 2018/19.  However, an allocation of £4.900m from the Provision 
relating to 2018/19 Service Pressures has reduced the forecast overspend to 
£1.243m.  This is an increase of £0.217m compared to June due to two new 
placements occurring in the month, adding £0.220m to the forecast outturn. 

The forecast overspends in June for the personal needs and legal costs budgets 
have been negated due to the allocation of £0.500m from the Provision relating to 
2018/19 Service Pressures. In addition, there are net underspends across other 
areas of the service totalling £0.251m.

The cost of Placements and Packages is the largest risk to the Council’s budget 
position and it is expected that the position will change.  The Council is looking at 
developing a range of options to address the inherent demand and costs of Looked 
After Children whilst supporting our most vulnerable residents.

 Corporate Resources (£0.080m underspend) - Increase in the cost of electoral 
services following the fall out of a national grant (£0.325m) offset by vacancy 
savings across the service.

 Economic Growth and Housing (£0.056m overspend before mitigating 
actions) – There are a number of variations across the service including an 
overspend at Southport Market due to lower than budgeted for occupancy rates. 
The service has identified mitigating actions, including delaying filling vacancies, 
which will bring the forecast outturn within the service budget.

Provision relating to 2018/19 
Service Pressures

0.000 0.000 0.000 *0.000 0.000

Budget Pressure Fund 1.000 1.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Public Sector Reform 
Savings not allocated to 
services (see para 2.3)

(0.950) 0.000 0.950 0.950 0.000

Council Wide Budgets 6.527 6.970 0.443 0.429 0.014
Levies 34.156 34.156 0.000 0.000 0.000
General Government Grants (40.979) (40.979) 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total Net Expenditure 219.139 221.654

Forecast Year-End Deficit 2.515 3.238 -0.723

Page 28

Agenda Item 6



 Education Excellence (£0.265m overspend) - Home to School transport external 
provision has a projected overspend of £2.171m.  This budget overspent by 
£1.817m in 2018/19 but is forecast to overspend by a further £0.354m due to the 
full year effect of the increased costs of new external transport contracts issued in 
September 2018. However, an allocation of £1.800m from the Provision relating to 
2018/19 Service Pressures has reduced the forecast overspend to £0.371m. In 
addition, there are net underspends across other areas of the service totalling 
£0.106m.

 Highways and Public Protection (£0.138m overspend before mitigating 
actions) – There is a shortfall on car parking income (£0.124m) due to poorer 
weather in the first quarter compared to 2018/19.  The approved saving from 
negotiating extensions to highways maintenance contracts has not realised the 
amount anticipated (£0.399m shortfall).  This has been mitigated by re-aligning 
Highway Maintenance budgets for 2019/20. The service will reduce the Highway 
Maintenance and Highway Management Programmes as required to mitigate the 
forecast overspend and ensure the forecast outturn is within the service budget.

 Locality Services (£0.245m overspend before mitigating actions) – The service 
pressures experienced in 2018/19 have continued into 2019/20. 

- Burials & Cremations (no variance) - competition from a Crematorium in a 
neighbouring authority continues with a significant impact on income levels 
However, an allocation of £0.320m from the Provision relating to 2018/19 
Service Pressures has mitigated this impact;

- Cleansing (no variance) – The impact of collections at additional properties and 
street cleaning work (including weed removal) has continued. However, an 
allocation of £0.280m from the Provision relating to 2018/19 Service Pressures 
has mitigated this pressure;

- Security Service (£0.240m overspend) – The forecast deficit is a reflection of an 
under recovery of income to support the cost base.  The forecast deficit has 
improved since 2018/19 (from £0.486m overspend) due to additional internal 
works being undertaken by the service.

Mitigating actions have been identified which will bring the forecast outturn within 
the service budget.  These include generating additional income through increased 
use of assistive technology and external security services as well as temporarily 
reducing expenditure on supplies and services and repairs and maintenance.

 Public Sector Reform Savings not allocated to services (£0.950m overspend) 
– see paragraph 2.3 below.

 Council Wide Budgets (£0.443m) – the increase in pay budgets due to pay 
awards and pension increases, after allowing for fees and charges increases for 
traded services, is £0.403m greater than the provision built into the 2019/20 
budget.

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



Savings Delivery

1.2 The 2019/20 Budget included £9.803m of savings from Public Sector Reform 
(PSR) projects. Current forecasts are that £8.853m of savings will be deliverable in 
the year (90%).  An analysis of the overall savings for 2019/20 are shown in the 
summary below:

Total 
Saving 
2019/20

Forecast -
Achieved
In 2019/20

Forecast 
– Not 

Achieved 
2019/20

£m £m £m

PSR1 - Acute Wrap Around 0.230 0.000 0.230
PSR2 – Locality Teams 4.408 4.408 0.000
PSR4 - All Age Pathway 0.089 0.089 0.000
PSR6 - Commercialisation 0.405 0.405 0.000
PSR8 – Asset Maximisation 0.512 0.512 0.000
PSR9 – ICT & Digital Inclusion 3.439 3.439 0.000
PSR10 - Commissioning 0.720 0.000 0.720
Total PSR Projects 9.803 8.853 0.950

1.3 The shortfall on the achievement of savings shown in the table is included in the 
forecast outturn position shown in paragraph 2.1.

1.4 In addition, service budget options of £2.269m were approved for 2019/20. These 
have been built into service budgets and any shortfall in achievement of these 
savings is included in the forecast outturn position for each service.

Measures to close the residual gap in 2019/20

1.5 The forecast budget deficit as at July 2019 is £2.515m.  This reflects the risks that 
were inherent in the Council’s financial position, particularly around demand for 
Children’s Social Care and other demand led services.  Major Services Reviews 
have commenced for Adult Social Care, Children’s Social Care, Education 
Excellence and Locality Services with a view to reduce this budget pressure where 
possible.

1.6 Paragraph 4.4 highlights that the surplus on Business Rates to be distributed in 
2019/20 is £1.750m.  In line with previous years, the budget assumes this surplus 
will be added to the Business Rates Earmarked Reserve, which is held to help 
offset potential losses of Business Rates income in future years.  An assessment of 
the reserve has determined that the current balance is at a prudent level so no 
increase is required in 2019/20.  Therefore, the assumed increase can be used to 
support the 2019/20 forecast outturn position.

1.7 The budget for 2019/20 includes a Budget Pressures Fund of £1.000m.  Council 
gave delegated authority to the Chief Executive and the Head of Corporate 

Page 30

Agenda Item 6



Resources, in conjunction with the Leader of the Council, to allocate this Fund.  At 
present this resource has not been allocated to specific services. However, it is 
assumed that £0.765m can be used to contribute to the Council’s overall position 
with the remaining £0.235m being retained to be utilised should further pressures 
be identified in future months. 

1.8 The net forecast outturn position for 2019/20 is therefore:

£m

Forecast Year-End Deficit (Paragraph 2.1) 2.515

Business Rates Reserve increase -1.750
Budget Pressures Fund -0.765

Forecast Year-End Deficit 0.000

1.9 Whilst the above table shows a balanced forecast outturn position, the risks 
inherent in the position, particularly relating to Looked After Children, mean the 
position may worsen during the year.  Should a deficit be forecast then further 
mitigating actions will need to be presented, including using the remaining Budget 
Pressures Fund, not filling vacant posts, a freeze on all but essential expenditure 
and any other appropriate measure to ensure a balanced forecast outturn position 
can be achieved.

1.10 An assessment will need to be made on the potential impact on the budget for 
2020/21.  The Business Rates Reserve usage is a one-off item so the net 
overspend without this is £1.750m.  If this continues to be a pressure in 2020/21 
then this will need to be considered as part of the three-year Budget Plan, with 
sustainable savings required to offset the pressure.

2 Council Tax Income – Update 
 
3.1 Council Tax income is shared between the billing authority (Sefton Council) and the 

three major precepting authorities (the Fire and Rescue Authority, the Police and 
Crime Commissioner and the Combined Authority – Mayoral Precept) pro-rata to 
their demand on the Collection Fund. The Council’s Budget included a Council Tax 
Requirement of £133.099m for 2019/20 (including Parish Precepts), which 
represents 84.1% of the net Council Tax income of £158.306m. 

3.2 The forecast outturn for the Council at the end of July 2019 is a deficit of -£0.198m.  
This variation is primarily due to: -

 The surplus on the fund at the end of 2018/19 being lower than estimated by 
0.151m;

 
 Gross Council Tax Charges in 2019/20 being higher than estimated at -£0.371m; 

 Exemptions and Discounts (including a forecasting adjustment) being higher 
than estimated at +£0.418m.

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



3.3 Due to Collection Fund regulations, the Council Tax surplus will not be transferred 
to the General Fund in 2019/20 but will be carried forward to be distributed in future 
years.

3.4 A forecast surplus of £1.160m was declared on the 15th January 2019 of which 
Sefton’s share is £0.996m (85.8%).  This is the amount that will be distributed from 
the Collection Fund in 2019/20.  Any additional surplus or deficit will be distributed 
in 2020/21.

4 Business Rates Income – Update 
 
4.1 Since 1 April 2017, Business Rates income has been shared between the Council 

(99%) and the Fire and Rescue Authority (1%). The Council’s Budget included 
retained Business Rates income of £64.739m for 2019/20, which represents 99% 
of the net Business Rates income of £65.393m. Business Rates income has 
historically been very volatile making it difficult to forecast accurately. 

4.2 The forecast outturn for the Council at the end of July 2019 is a surplus of -
£0.825m on Business Rates income. This is due to:

 The surplus on the fund at the end of 2018/19 being higher than estimated -
£0.092m; 

 Increase in the gross charge on rateable properties (-£0.279m)
 Other reliefs (including a forecasting adjustment) being lower than estimated in 

2019/20 at -£0.454m.

4.3 Due to Collection Fund regulations, the Business Rates surplus will not be 
transferred to the General Fund in 2019/20 but will be carried forward to be 
distributed in future years.  However, £0.473m of the surplus forecast in paragraph 
4.2 will be required to offset the shortfall in Section 31 grants due to certain reliefs 
being lower than estimated in 2019/20.

4.4 A forecast surplus of £1.768m was declared in January 2019.  Sefton’s share of 
this is -£1.750m which is made up of an amount brought forward from 2017/18 (-
£2.169m) and the impact of variations in 2018/19 (+£0.419m).  This is the amount 
that will be distributed from the Collection Fund in 2019/20 and any additional 
surplus or deficit will be distributed in 2020/21.

5 Capital Programme 2019/20 – 2021/22 & Future Years

5.1 Capital Budget

5.1.1 The revised Capital Budget and profile of expenditure for the three years 2019/20 
to 2021/22 is:

5.1.2 Amendments to the 2019/20 capital budget have been made in July due to re-
phasing of schemes between 2020/21 and 2019/20 as follows:

2019/20 £26.030m
2020/21 £10.888m
2021/22 £0.730m

Page 32

Agenda Item 6



 HMRI Compulsory Purchase Order Costs (£25k from 2020/21 to 2019/20)
 School’s funding for Hudson Primary (£86k from 2020/21 to 2019/20)
 Parks schemes (£62k from 2019/20 to 2020/21).

5.1.3 An additional Section 106 scheme has also been added in Litherland Ward (£45k, 
see paragraph 5.9.1).

5.2 Budget Monitoring Position to July 2019

5.2.1 The current position of expenditure against the budget profile to the end of July 
2019 is shown in the table below. It should be noted that budgets are profiled over 
the financial year which skews expenditure to the final three quarters of the 
financial year. 

5.2.2 As would be expected Education Excellence carries out most of its capital works 
during key school’s holiday periods such as the summer recess, whilst Highways 
and public Protection completes most of its programmed works during quarters 2 
and 3. The Adult Social Care expenditure excluding core Disabled Facilities Grant 
(DFG) expenditure is also profiled to quarters 3 and 4.

Service Area
Budget to 

Jul-19

Actual 
Expenditure 

to Jul-19
Variance 
to Jul-19

£000 £000 £000

Adult Social Care 981 926 -55
Communities 63 58 -5
Corporate Resources 128 115 -13
Economic Growth & Housing 37 53 16
Education Excellence 682 603 -79
Highways & Public Protection 1,245 1,270 25
Locality Services 229 318 89

Total Programme 3,365 3,343 -22

5.2.3 Analysis of significant spend variations over (+) / under (-) budget profile:

Economic Growth & Housing
Scheme Variation  Reason Action Plan

Southport Pier £14,929 Outstanding claims for 
internal fees being 
recovered.

The project will be 
delivered within the 
remaining budget. 
Quotes are awaited on 
the final phase, which 
involves adding a slide 
to the end of the pier, 
and quotes will be 
assessed against 
remaining available 
resources.

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



Education Excellence
Scheme Variation  Reason Action Plan

Linacre Primary – 
Classroom Refurb

£36,310

Lydiate Primary – 
General Refurb

£19,414

Initial work on these 
school’s schemes has 
been completed ahead of 
schedule.

The remaining works will 
be complete as planned 
over the summer 
holidays with no 
additional funding 
required.

Forefield Infants – 
New Toilet Block

-£20,373

Netherton Moss Primary - 
Rewiring

-£95,867

Norwood Primary - 
Remodelling

-£22,236

Less progress being 
made on site than 
originally anticipated for 
these schemes.

Contractor to catch up 
on work over the 
summer and schemes 
will be completed within 
the agreed budget. 
Expenditure profile to be 
updated to reflect 
revised schedules.

Highways & Public Protection
Scheme Variation Reason Action Plan

A59 Maghull Route 
Management 
(Dover Road)

£253,565 Statutory undertakers 
payments are being made 
up front.

Budget profile will be 
revised to take account 
of the front loading of 
spend.

Dibb Lane Improvements -£23,333 Contractor not able to 
schedule in the required 
minor works when 
needed.

Will monitor situation 
and look to engage an 
alternative contractor to 
complete on schedule if 
required.

A565 Corridor 
Improvements (Thornton)

-£77,801 Project is currently 
delayed - statutory 
diversions for utilities 
haven’t been made as 
requested. 

Budget will be reprofiled 
for revised completion in 
October.

Resurfacing Programme £206,808 £106k is last year’s works 
plus £100k of works this 
year completed ahead of 
schedule.

Spend will not exceed 
the approved budget as 
work can be halted when 
all funding has been 
exhausted.

Maintenance -£137,900 Outstanding balances 
from previous year.

Balance is now 
reducing. Contractors 
continue to be chased 
up to clear outstanding 
amounts.

Street Lighting Block 
Allocation

-£19,675 Ordering delays with 
replacement lighting.

Ordering will be brought 
up to date.

Page 34

Agenda Item 6



M58 Junction 1 
Improvements

-£191,186 Works on site and 
proceeding as planned 
but contractor has 
submitted a revised cost 
schedule.

New cost profile to be 
reviewed and budget to 
be updated.

Locality Services
Scheme Variation Reason Action Plan

CERMS £48,992

Crosby Flood & Coastal 
Scheme

£38,090

Work is progressing on 
these projects as planned 
but invoices have been 
paid earlier than 
anticipated. No 
overspend is forecast 
against total budget 
allocation. 

Budget profile will be 
reviewed to align 
payments with cost 
profile. Further info to be 
obtained from 
contractors regarding 
timing of payments.

5.2.4 In the June report a number of schemes that reported variances to budget 
contained action plans to address the variance. Progress on these is as follows:

Highways & Public Protection
Scheme Variation Action Plan Progress to date

Maintenance -£211,639 Contractors will be 
chased up to clear 
outstanding 
balances.

Contractors are being 
chased up and the 
balance has been 
reduced to £138k.

M58 Junction 1 Improvements -£135,497 Processing of 
payments will be 
brought up to date in 
July.

Contractor has now 
provided a new cost 
profile. The budget will 
be reviewed to bring the 
profile into line with 
payment dates.

Locality Services
Scheme Variation Action Plan Progress to date

Tree Planting -£23,916 Delay in receiving 
invoices from 
contractor.

All outstanding invoices 
have now been paid.

5.3 Capital Programme Forecast Outturn 2019/20

5.3.1 The current forecast of expenditure against the budget profile to the end of 
2019/20 and the profile of budgets for future years is shown in the table below:

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



Service Area

Full Year 
Budget 
2019/20

Forecast 
Out-turn

Variance 
to Budget

Full Year 
Budget 
2020/21

Full Year 
Budget 
2021/22

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Adult Social Care 4,762 4,760 -2 0 0
Communities 225 219 -6 314 0
Corporate Resources 1,291 1,291 0 100 0
Economic Growth & Housing 332 332 0 133 0
Education Excellence 3,512 3,514 3 8,566 191
Highways & Public Protection 13,244 13,932 689 178 0
Locality Services 2,665 2,665 0 1,597 539
Total Programme 26,030 26,714 683 10,888 730

A full list of the capital programme by capital scheme is at Appendix A.

5.3.2 Analysis of significant spend variations over budget profile in 2019/20:

Highways & Public Protection
Scheme Variation Reason Action Plan

M58 Junction 1 
Improvements

£688,540 Delays to the project due to 
longer than anticipated time to 
secure the land. Contractual 
payments had to be made to the 
contractor in the interim. 
Additional redesign costs have 
also been incurred. The total 
forecast overspend is £780k 
over 2019/20 and 2020/21.

Additional funding will be 
requested from the CA project 
management office. If this is 
unsuccessful, the transport 
programme will be reviewed to 
identify resources that can be 
redirected to the M58 scheme 
(see section 5, below).

5.4 M58 Junction 1 Improvements

5.4.1 As noted in paragraph 5.3.2, the major scheme for improvements at M58 Junction 
1 is forecast to overspend in 2019/20 by £0.69m due to increased costs as a 
result of delays to the project.

5.4.2 The total forecast expenditure over the revised timescales of the project (due to 
complete in 2020/21) has increased by £0.78m when compared to the initial 
valuation. The Strategic Transport Planning and Investment team continue to 
explore how the Council may secure additional support from the CA but at present 
no additional resource is forthcoming.

5.4.3 The scheme is now on site and progressing as planned. The contractor has 
provided an updated cost profile and this will be reviewed to identify any changes 
to profiled expenditure and the forecast out-turn position at year end. An update 
will be provided to members within future budget reports.

Page 36

Agenda Item 6



5.5 New Grant Bid - Liverpool City Region (LCR) Town Centre Fund

5.5.1 Sefton is currently drawing up proposals to make an application to the LCR Town 
Centre Fund. The strategic objectives of this fund include: enhancing place-
making, delivering jobs and infrastructure improvements, and improving the town 
centre offer including increasing foot fall and vitality across the City Region to 
enhance the local town centres and strengthen economic growth in the region.

5.5.2 Interventions under the Town Centre Fund will contribute to local communities and 
improve the environment within which people work and live through:

i. Enhancing the sustainable vitality of local town and district centres through 
investment that delivers new employment opportunities and makes those 
employment opportunities accessible to local residents.

ii. Place renewal projects, particularly those designed to move away from 
traditional retail, and broaden the town centre offer and ensure future 
sustainability.

5.5.3 A total bid of £1m is proposed with a minimum of £0.500m allocated to capital 
projects along with an element of match funding where identified. A detailed report 
will be brought to Cabinet following consultation with Strategic Leadership Board.

5.6 Adult Social Care allocations and programme

5.6.1 As noted in the June monitoring report to Cabinet, the success of delivering the 
schemes is based upon an Adult Social Care project board being set up in quarter 
2, with the majority of this year’s spend consequently being profiled into quarters 3 
and 4. The Director of Adult Social Services has an established programme 
approach across a number of areas and the capital programme will be monitored 
through this approach.

5.6.2 The following progress has been made on schemes to date:

 ICT Development and Transformation – two staff members have been 
assigned to this project to support system development.

 Occupational Therapist Support – agency staff have been assigned to this 
project in the interim. Further recruitment will be scheduled for later in the 
year.

 Community Equipment Store Refurbishment – this project has now been 
completed and delivered within budget.

 Other - A programme plan is in development and an extra care housing post 
is at the point of being advertised.

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



5.7 School’s General Maintenance

5.7.1 The Council currently has a backlog of planned maintenance under the school’s 
programme. A budget of £4m has been allocated to school’s general maintenance 
in 2020/21 and will need to be prioritised to essential schemes going forward. 
Officers from the Property and Building Services team will be reviewing the 
planned maintenance budget in the coming months to determine a prioritised list 
of needs to be delivered within the current resource availability. A final programme 
of spend will then be agreed by the Director of Children’s Social Care and 
Education and this will form a future section of this report.

5.8 Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) Capital Allocations

5.8.1 Sefton has made a successful bid to the Department for Education in order to 
draw down SEND capital grant funding in 2019/20 of £0.849m. This funding has 
been matched by £0.301m from the balance of existing school’s allocations.

5.8.2 The Department for Education (DfE) is currently reviewing these schemes and will 
release the funds to Sefton in the coming months once they are satisfied that the 
plans have met the funding requirements.

5.8.3 Due to the need to start essential schemes over the school’s summer holiday 
period, the SEND projects listed below are proceeding on site and 3 are due to be 
completed before the start of the new term. The projects have been funded from 
the balance of existing school’s allocations of £0.301m with further spending on 
larger schemes scheduled upon receipt of the SEND capital grant from DfE.

 Crosby High – Accessibility Works (Phase1) £8,850
There are two parts to the project, the first being to remove cross corridor 
partitions causing issues for wheelchair users moving around the school. The 
second part of the project is to widen doors in key areas around the school, in 
particular doors to classrooms. Phase one is scheduled over the summer 2019 
with full completion of phase two scheduled for August 2020. The full scheme 
budget is £41,000.

 Redgate Primary – Specialist Resource Provision £60,000
Work has been completed on adaptions to the shower rooms, toilets, kitchen and 
the perimeter fencing with further work on flooring to be completed by early 
September.

 Rowan Park School Expansion £27,500
The initial work involves improvements to the site security both the external 
perimeter and to the internal doors. Alterations are required to provide additional 
privacy in the toilet areas as well as adaptions to the toilets to suit the new mixed 
age group.

Page 38

Agenda Item 6



 Waterloo Primary – SEND Classroom £28,000
A new classroom is required for use by SEN children and will need to be ready in 
time for the new term in September. The work will involve the partitioning of the 
existing infant’s hall as well as provision of a changing room facility by converting 
a nearby store.

5.9 New Capital Schemes

5.9.1 Communities £44,640
A new 7.5t caged tipper vehicle will be purchased in November to support the 
Litherland Hit Squad. This expenditure will be fully funded from Section 106 
monies for Litherland Ward. This scheme has been approved by the Head of 
Corporate Resources in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation.

5.10 Programme Funding

5.10.1 The table below shows a how the capital programme will be funding in 2019/20:

Grants 22.852
Contributions (incl. Section 106) 1.259
Capital Receipts 0.265
Prudential Borrowing 1.654
Total Programme Funding 26.030

5.10.2 The programme is reviewed on an ongoing basis to confirm the capital resources 
required to finance capital expenditure are in place, the future years programme is 
fully funded and the level of prudential borrowing remains affordable subject to the 
issue raised in paragraph 5.4.2.

5.10.3 The Head of Corporate Resources will continue to manage the financing of the 
programme to ensure the final capital funding arrangements secure the maximum 
financial benefit to the Council.

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



APPENDIX A – Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2021/22

Budget
Capital Project

2019/20
£

2020/21
£

2021/22
£

Adult Social Care
Adult Social Care IT Infrastructure  44,020  -  - 

South Hub  11,257  -  - 

Primary Care Integration  39,500  -  - 

Core DFG Programme  2,200,000  -  - 

Wider Social Care Programme  2,467,000  -  - 

Communities
Atkinson Studio Stage  11,929  -  - 

Dunes All Weather Pitches - Invest to Save  13,083  -  - 

Crosby Lakeside Adventure Centre Water Sports  75,157  -  - 

Formby Library Improvements  -  6,620  - 

Libraries - Centres of Excellence  80,000  265,237  - 

Bootle Library  -  42,372  - 

Litherland Hit Squad - Caged Tipper  44,640  -  - 

Corporate Resources
Corporate Maintenance  113,022  -  - 

STCC Essential Maintenance  219,718  -  - 

St John Stone Site – Infrastructure Works  623,210  -  - 

Magdalen House Alterations  144,979  -  - 

Meadows Community Base  6,328  -  - 

Aintree Community Base  7,783  -  - 

NAC Community Base  21,010  -  - 

Southport Town Hall Community Base  31,850  -  - 

Family Wellbeing Centres  122,816  100,000  - 

Economic Growth & Housing
Marian Square, Netherton CCTV  -  40,405  - 

REECH Project  37,162  -  - 

Southport Commerce Park - 3rd Phase Development  13,173  -  - 

Housing Investment (HMRI)  29,100  62,680  - 

Southport Pier Project  252,528  29,675  - 

Education Excellence
Healthy Pupils Fund  178,000  -  - 

Schools Programme  2,526,724  3,511,848  190,982 

Planned Maintenance  655,203  4,000,000  - 

Special Educational Needs & Disabilities  151,850  1,054,650  - 

Page 40

Agenda Item 6



2019/20
£

2020/21
£

2021/22
£

Highways and Public Protection
Accessibility  265,000  -  - 

Completing Schemes/Retentions  32,250  -  - 

Healthy Lifestyles  1,590,000  -  - 

Road Safety  120,000  -  - 

A565 Route Management and Parking  710,000  -  - 

Strategic Planning  523,990  -  - 

Traffic Management and Parking  2,417,500  -  - 

Highway Maintenance  2,039,446  -  - 

Bridges & Structures  243,110  -  - 

Drainage  225,000  -  - 

Street Lighting Maintenance  300,000  -  - 

UTC Maintenance  100,000  -  - 

Major Transport Schemes  4,677,589  177,836  - 

Locality Services
Thornton Garden of Rest Improvements  3,692  -  - 

Burials & Cremation Insourcing  -  200,000  - 

Formby Strategic Flood Risk Management  -  44,141  - 

Merseyside Groundwater Study  20,000  11,508  - 

Four Acres Multi Agency Flood Options  3,352  -  - 

CERMS  658,892  410,274  - 

Natural Flood Risk Management  10,000  -  - 

The Pool & Nile Watercourses  58,602  -  - 

Crosby Flood & Coastal Scheme  358,947  306,190  500,000 

Seaforth & Litherland Strategic Flood Risk  -  30,000  - 

Hall Road & Alt Training Bank - Rock Armour  50,000  -  - 

Ainsdale & Birkdale Land Drainage Scheme  30,000  -  - 

Surface Water Management Plan  170,000  -  - 

Parks Schemes  116,773  555,236  - 

Tree Planting Programme  54,300  39,174  38,600 

Vehicle Replacement Programme  1,130,614  -  - 

TOTAL PROGRAMME  26,030,099  10,887,846  729,582 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet Member Brief
Overview & Scrutiny Committee

(Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services)
10 September 2019

Welfare Reform & Anti-Poverty Update

Membership and Purpose of the Group
Membership of the WRAP Members Reference Group is comprised of the following 
councillors:
Councillor Trish Hardy (Cabinet Member for Communities and Housing) 
Councillor Paul Cummins (Cabinet Member for Adult Social care) 
Councillor Ian Moncur (Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing) 
Councillor Paulette Lappin (Cabinet Member for Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate 
Services) 

Officers on the Group represent Public Health, Communities, Performance and Intelligence, 
Revenues and Benefits and Strategic Support

The purpose of the Welfare Reform and Anti-Poverty Cabinet Member Reference Group is:
 To develop and maintain a Sefton One Council approach to WRAP
 To act as the main forum for strategic discussions about WRAP, including receiving 

and responding to policy developments, consultations, approaches to work jointly 
with other organisations, and ideas for local action 

 To agree the operational model for the local Welfare Scheme (ELAS), and the 
Council funding of those VCF organisations involved in the delivery of support. 

 To commission other pieces of work in line with the action plan, as appropriate 
 To engage with the public and communicate accurate and appropriate messages in 

relation to WRAP. 
 Specifically, in relation to WRAP, contribute to and develop the delivery of the local 

Partnership Action Plan

WRAP Conference
The WRAP Partnership Steering Group held a conference in February 2019 with the theme 
“The Power of Partnership”.  The event was attended by Councillors, Officers and 
community and voluntary organisations.  Presentations were received which included 
volunteers from Bootle Salvation Army and Migrant Workers Sefton (MWS).  
A swop board was put up and partners have offered support to each other in the way of 
meeting room facilities, social media support, IT support, equipment, donations and donation 
points.  Information and feedback from the event is being used to develop the WRAP action 
plan.  

Action Plan Next Steps
Following the WRAP Partnership event on 28th February 2019 and discussions at WRAP 
Partnership Steering Group and WRAP Cabinet Member Reference Group, an outline of a 
strategic action plan for the year 2019/2020 has been developed.

The actions build upon the good work and solid foundations established over previous years 
of collaborative working amongst the WRAP partners.

Led by Sefton Council, the new plan is proposing to focus on four structural priorities aiming 
to strengthen working practices between agencies, and seven developmental priorities aiming 
to deliver and enhance the current offer of support to communities. The focus is on action, 
delivery and active commitment of all partner agencies engaged in the WRAP. 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



Structural Priorities
1. Local Intelligence
2. Referral Pathways
3. Workforce Development
4. Sustainability

Developmental Priorities
1. Period Poverty
2. Coats and Uniform Bank
3. Friendship
4. Funeral Poverty
5. Food Poverty
6. Debt Advice
7. Fuel Poverty

Emergency Limited Assistance Scheme (ELAS) 
The ELAS Annual Report was circulated and discussed.  The report provided a summary of 
performance information for the Council’s local welfare support scheme since its 
implementation in April 2013 to 31 March 2019.  The report also provided summative 
analysis of demand and provision in Sefton for the financial year 2018/2019.

Summer Holidays Food Programme
This summer the holiday food programme for families of children receiving free school meals 
in family centres is in its third year.  This programme is in addition to voluntary sector 
programmes and support for families.  Donations are being received from local suppliers 
including major supermarkets.

Winter Coats
A project to provide winter coats ran last winter by the Local Authority with support from The 
Food Banks and Sefton CVS.  There were no set criteria for receiving the coats meaning the 
programme was available to all.  It was noted that there is surplus stock from last year with 
the food banks.

A joint bid between Sefton CVS and The Food Banks has been successful for funding to 
support and develop this project and that there is opportunity of working with Sefton4Good in 
schools and other organisations for programmed donations.  Any clothes that are not fit for 
purpose will be recycled and funds gained will be put back into Sefton4Good.

Standard communications materials will be delivered via all partners.  It was noted that coats 
for teen boys are particularly in demand.  Clothes donation boxes will be located next to the 
food collection boxes.

Narrative
A narrative was developed and agreed by the WRAP Cabinet Member Reference Group 
which will be used as a factsheet with the purpose of describing to other members the 
services available in support of welfare reform.   It was emphasised that the focus is on 
sharing information about services available which includes:

 Emergency Limited Assistance 
Scheme (ELAS) 

 Sefton Foodbank Network
 Welfare Rights Team

 Sefton Helping Hands
 Citizens Advice
 Sefton CVS
 Credit Unions

Page 44

Agenda Item 7



Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee      
(Regulatory, 
Compliance and 
Corporate Services)

Date of Meeting: 10 September 2019

Subject: Work Programme 2019/20, Scrutiny Review Topics and Key 
Decision Forward Plan

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer

Wards Affected: All

Cabinet Portfolio: Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To seek the views of the Committee on the Work Programme for 2019/20, identify 
potential topics for scrutiny reviews to be undertaken by a Working Group(s) appointed 
by the Committee and identify any items for pre-scrutiny by the Committee from the Key 
Decision Forward Plan.

Recommendation:

That: 

(1) the Work Programme for 2019/20, as set out in Appendix 1 to the report, be 
considered, along with any additional items to be included and thereon be agreed;

(2) dependent upon the views of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board as 
referred to in Paragraph 2 of the report a topic be selected for a Working Group 
review following the completion of the current Council’s Ethical Business Practices 
Working Group; and appoint at least 3 Members of the Committee to such 
Working Group; and

(3) the Committee considers items for pre-scrutiny from the Key Decision Forward 
Plan as set out in Appendix 3 to the report, which fall under the remit of the 
Committee and any agreed items be included in the work programme referred to in 
(1) above.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To consider the Work Programme of items to be considered during the Municipal Year 
2019/20 and identify scrutiny review topics which would demonstrate that the work of the 
Overview and Scrutiny ‘adds value’ to the Council.

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



The pre-scrutiny process assists Cabinet Members to make effective decisions by 
examining issues before making formal decisions. 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

No alternative options have been considered as the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
needs to approve its Work Programme and identify scrutiny review topics.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Any financial 
implications arising from the consideration of a key decision or relating to a 
recommendation arising from a Working Group review will be reported to Members at the 
appropriate time.

(A) Revenue Costs – see above

(B) Capital Costs – see above

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets): None

Legal Implications: None

Equality Implications: There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: None directly applicable to this report but reference in the 
Work Programme to the approval of, and monitoring of recommendations contained in 
Digital inclusion Working Group Final Report will help with the aim of ensuring that 
people have the capability to use the internet to do things that benefit them on a day to 
day basis - whether they be individuals, businesses or other entities e.g. the voluntary 
sector; and aim to reduce digital exclusion and the digital divide that can exist within 
society for a variety of reasons.
Facilitate confident and resilient communities: None directly applicable to this report. 
See reference to the Digital Inclusion Working Group referred to above.
Commission, broker and provide core services: None directly applicable to this report 
but reference in the Work Programme to the presentation on the update on the 
Commissioning and the Procurement Policy will raise awareness of associated issues 
with Members. The Working Group established by the Committee to review the 
Council’s Ethical Business Practices will look into ethical procurement. 
See also reference to the Digital Inclusion Working Group referred to above.
Place – leadership and influencer: None directly applicable to this report.
Drivers of change and reform: None directly applicable to this report. See reference to 
the Digital Inclusion Working Group referred to above.
Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: None directly applicable to this report.  See 
reference to the Digital Inclusion Working Group referred to above.
Greater income for social investment: None directly applicable to this report. 
Cleaner Greener: None directly applicable to this report but reference in the Work 

Page 46

Agenda Item 8



Programme to the submission of the report on Air Quality Monitoring will raise 
awareness of associated issues with Members.

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Work Programme Report is not subject to FD/LD consultation.  Any specific financial 
and legal implications associated with any subsequent reports arising from the report will 
be included in those reports as appropriate

(B) External Consultations 

Not applicable
 
Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Paul Fraser
Telephone Number: 0151 934 2068
Email Address: Paul.fraser@sefton.gov.uk 

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report: 
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme for 2019/20 – Appendix 1
 Criteria Checklist for Selecting Topics for Review – Appendix 2
 Latest Key Decision Forward Plan items relating to this Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee – Appendix 3

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Introduction/Background

1. WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

1.1 The Work Programme of items to be submitted to the Committee for consideration 
during the Municipal Year 2019/20 is set out in Appendix 1 to the report. The 
programme has been produced in liaison with the appropriate Heads of Service, 
whose roles fall under the remit of the Committee.

1.2 Members are requested to consider whether there are any other items that they 
wish the Committee to consider, that fall within the terms of reference of the 
Committee. The Work Programme will be submitted to each meeting of the 
Committee during 2019/20 and updated, as appropriate. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Paul.fraser@sefton.gov.uk


1.3 The Committee is requested to comment on the Work Programme for 
2019/20 and note that additional items may be submitted to the Programme 
at future meetings of the Committee during this Municipal Year.

2. SCRUTINY REVIEW TOPICS 2019/20

2.1 It is usual practise for the Committee to appoint a Working Group(s) to undertake 
a scrutiny review of services during the Municipal Year. 

2.2 Last year the Committee agreed to establish a Working Group to review the topic 
of the Council’s Ethical Business Practices. This review is on-going and it is 
anticipated that the Working Group’s Final Report will be completed in September 
2019. 

2.3 The Committee’s views are sought on the establishment of a Working Group to 
commence its review following the completion of the Council’s Ethical Business 
Practices Working Group.  

   
2.4 A criteria checklist for selecting and rejecting potential topics to review is attached 

at Appendix 2, to assist the Committee in selecting topics and appointing 
Working Group(s) for the Municipal Year. 

2.5 At its last meeting held on 18 June 2019 the Committee was advised that 
consultations had been undertaken with the Head of Corporate Resources on 
potential topics, and a suggestion had been made that a Working Group could be 
established to ‘review and develop options for how the Council’s activities could 
ameliorate the impact of climate change with a view to integrating proposals in 
any future strategy or delivery plan’. If approved this Working Group would be 
supported by the Council’s Energy Team. 

2.6      The Committee resolved (Minute No. (6) (2)) that the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board be requested to consider establishing a cross-cutting review 
to review and develop options for how the Council’s activities could ameliorate the 
impact of climate change with a view to integrating proposals in any future 
strategy or delivery plan together with ways to improve pollution levels associated 
with traffic management and highway issues.

2.7 The Management Board has not yet considered this request and will do so at its 
next meeting to be held immediately prior to this meeting of the Committee. Any 
decisions taken by the Management Board will be reported to this meeting of the 
Committee.  

2.8 At its meeting held on 18 July 2019 the Council approved a Motion on Climate 
Change Emergency. The terms of the Motion will require, amongst many other 
actions: 

 Overview and Scrutiny Management Board to consider the impact of climate 
change and the environment when reviewing Council policies and strategies and 
charge Task and Finish groups to also consider those impacts in any report and 
every topic

 The setting up a Sefton Climate Change group

Page 48

Agenda Item 8



2.9 In the light of the actions referred to in 2.8 above the previous decision of this 
Committee (Minute No. (6) (2)) may no longer need to be pursued. Again, the 
views of the Management Board on this matter will be reported verbally to this 
meeting of the Committee.

2.10 Dependent upon the outcome of the Management Board’s deliberations the 
Committee is requested to consider the establishment of a Working Group 
to commence its review following the completion of the Council’s Ethical 
Business Practices Working Group; and appoint at least 3 Members of the 
Committee to the Working Group.

3. PRE-SCRUTINY OF ITEMS IN THE KEY DECISION FORWARD PLAN

3.1 Members may request to pre-scrutinise items from the Key Decision Forward Plan 
which fall under the remit (terms of reference) of this Committee. The Forward 
Plan which is updated each month, sets out the list of items to be submitted to the 
Cabinet for consideration during the next four-month period.

3.2 The pre-scrutiny process assists the Cabinet Members to make effective 
decisions by examining issues beforehand and making recommendations prior to 
a determination being made.

3.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board has requested that only those key 
decisions that fall under the remit of each Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
should be included on the agenda for consideration.

3.4 The latest Forward Plan is attached at Appendix 3 for this purpose. For ease of 
identification, items listed on the Forward Plan for the first time appear as shaded. 

3.5 Should Members require further information in relation to any item on the Key 
Decision Forward Plan, would they please contact the relevant Officer named 
against the item in the Plan, prior to the Meeting.

3.6 The Committee is invited to consider items for pre-scrutiny from the Key 
Decision Forward Plan as set out in Appendix 3 to the report, which fall 
under the remit of the Committee and any agreed items be included in the 
Work Programme referred to in (1) above.

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (REGULATORY, COMPLIANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES)
WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20

18 JUNE 
19

10 
SEPTEMBER 

19

22 OCTOBER 
19 

14 JANUARY 
20

11 FEBRUARY 20
(BUDGET 
MEETING)

3 MARCH 20

Cabinet Member Update 
Report 

x x x x x

Work Programme 
Update 

x x x x x

Service Operational 
Reports:
Review of the Council 
Tax Reduction Scheme 

x

Disposal of Surplus 
Council Owned 
Land/Asset 
Management Strategy 

x

“Manage my Requests” 
(iCaseWork) system – 
Statistical Update Report 

x

Members’ Welfare 
Reform Reference 
Group – Update

x x x x

Scrutiny Review 
Progress Reports:
Air Quality Monitoring x
Disciplinary and 
Grievance Procedures 
and Sickness Absence 
Monitoring

x

Area Committees 
Working Group – Update 
on Community Chat 

x

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 8



APPENDIX 1

Events 
Digital Inclusion Working 
Group – Update on 
Recommendations 

x

Effectiveness of Local 
Authority Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees – 
Government Response 
to DCLG Select 
Committee Report 

x

“Tool-Kit” for Armed 
Forces Covenant 

x

Financial Scrutiny:
Budget Report 2020/21 
to 2022/23 

x

Financial Performance 
Monitoring 

x x x

Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities – Prudential 
Indicators 

x

Treasury Management 
Policy and Strategy 

x

Capital Strategy 2020/21 
and Future Years 

x

Asset Management 
Strategy and Asset 
Disposal Policy

x

Robustness of the 
2020/21 Budget 
Estimates and the 
Adequacy of Reserves – 
local Government Act 
2003 – Section 25 

x

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 8



APPENDIX 1

Presentations
Update on 
Commissioning and the 
Procurement Policy Jan 
McMahon

x

Social Media Use and 
Effectiveness Nicky 
Speed

x

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

CRITERIA CHECKLIST FOR SELECTING TOPICS FOR REVIEW

Criteria for Selecting Items
 Issue identified by members as key issue for public (through member 

surgeries, other contact with constituents or volume of complaints)
 Poor performing service (evidence from performance 

indicators/benchmarking)
 Service ranked as important by the community (e.g. through market 

surveys/citizens panels)
 High level of user/general public dissatisfaction with service (e.g. through 

market surveys/citizens panels/complaints)
 Public interest issue covered in local media
 High level of budgetary commitment to the service/policy area (as 

percentage of total expenditure)
 Pattern of budgetary overspends
 Council corporate priority area
 Central government priority area
 Issues raised by External Audit Management Letter/External audit reports
 New government guidance or legislation
 Reports or new evidence provided by external organisations on key issue
 Others

CRITERIA FOR REJECTION

Potential Criteria for Rejecting Items
 Issue being examined by the Cabinet
 Issue being examined by an Officer Group : changes imminent 
 Issue being examined by another internal body
 Issue will be addressed as part of a Service Review within the next year 
 New legislation or guidance expected within the next year
 Other reasons specific to the particular issues.

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX 2

SCRUTINY CHECKLIST
DO'S AND DON'TS

DO
 Remember that Scrutiny

 Is about learning and being a "critical friend"; it should be a positive 
process

 Is not opposition
 Remember that Scrutiny should result in improved value, enhanced 

performance or greater public satisfaction
 Take an overview and keep an eye on the wider picture
 Check performance against local standards and targets and national 

standards, and compare results with other authorities 
 Benchmark performance against local and national performance 

indicators, using the results to ask more informed questions 
 Use Working Groups to get underneath performance information
 Take account of local needs, priorities and policies
 Be persistent and inquisitive
 Ask effective questions - be constructive not judgmental
 Be open-minded and self aware - encourage openness and self criticism in 

services
 Listen to users and the public, seek the voices that are often not heard, 

seek the views of others - and balance all of these
 Praise good practice and best value - and seek to spread this throughout 

the authority
 Provide feedback to those who have been involved in the review and to 

stakeholders
 Anticipate difficulties in Members challenging colleagues from their own 

party 
 Take time to review your own performance

 DON'T
 Witch-hunt or use performance review as punishment
 Be party political/partisan
 Blame valid risk taking or stifle initiative or creativity
 Treat scrutiny as an add-on
 Get bogged down in detail
 Be frightened of asking basic questions
 Undertake too many issues in insufficient depth
 Start without a clear brief and remit
 Underestimate the task
 Lose track of the main purpose of scrutiny
 Lack sensitivity to other stakeholders
 Succumb to organisational inertia
 Duck facing failure - learn from it and support change and development
 Be driven by data or be paralysed by analysis - keep strategic overview, 

Page 56

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX 2

and expect officers to provide high level information and analysis to help.

KEY QUESTIONS

Overview and Scrutiny Committees should keep in mind some of the 
fundamental questions:-

Are we doing what users/non users/local residents want? 
Are users' needs central to the service?
Why are we doing this?
What are we trying to achieve?
How well are we doing?
How do we compare with others?
Are we delivering value for money?
How do we know?
What can we improve?

INVESTIGATIONS:-

To what extent are service users' expectations and needs being met?
To what extent is the service achieving what the policy intended?
To what extent is the service meeting any statutory obligations or national 
standards and targets?
Are there any unexpected results/side effects of the policy?
Is the performance improving, steady or deteriorating?
Is the service able to be honest and open about its current performance and 
the reasons behind it?
Are areas of achievement and weakness fairly and accurately identified?
How has performance been assessed?  What is the evidence?
How does performance compare with that of others?  Are there learning 
points from others' experiences?
Is the service capable of meeting planned targets/standards?  What change to 
capability is needed.
Are local performance indicators relevant, helpful, meaningful to Members, 
staff and service users?

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3

1

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

FOR THE FOUR MONTH PERIOD 1 OCTOBER 2019 - 31 JANUARY 2020

This Forward Plan sets out the details of the key decisions which the Cabinet, individual Cabinet 
Members or Officers expect to take during the next four month period.  The Plan is rolled forward 
every month and is available to the public at least 28 days before the beginning of each month.

A Key Decision is defined in the Council's Constitution as:

1. any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 
approved by the Council and which requires a gross budget expenditure, saving or virement 
of more than £100,000 or more than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the 
greater;

2. any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact on a significant 
number of people living or working in two or more Wards

Anyone wishing to make representations about any of the matters listed below may do so by 
contacting the relevant officer listed against each Key Decision, within the time period indicated.

Under the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in the Council's Constitution, a Key 
Decision may not be taken, unless:

 it is published in the Forward Plan;
 5 clear days have lapsed since the publication of the Forward Plan; and
 if the decision is to be taken at a meeting of the Cabinet, 5 clear days notice of the meeting 

has been given.

The law and the Council's Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made, even though 
they have not been included in the Forward Plan in accordance with Rule 26 (General Exception) 
and Rule 28 (Special Urgency) of the Access to Information Procedure Rules.

Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the Town Hall, Oriel Road, Bootle L20 
7AE or accessed from the Council's website: www.sefton.gov.uk 

 Council Constitution
 Forward Plan
 Reports on the Key Decisions to be taken
 Other documents relating to the proposed decision may be submitted to the decision making 

meeting and these too will be made available by the contact officer named in the Plan
 The minutes for each Key Decision, which will normally be published within 5 working days 

after having been made

Some reports to be considered by the Cabinet/Council may contain exempt information and will 
not be made available to the public. The specific reasons (Paragraph No(s)) why such reports are 
exempt are detailed in the Plan and the Paragraph No(s) and descriptions are set out below:-

Page 59

Agenda Item 8

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


APPENDIX 3

2

1. Information relating to any individual
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 

 authority holding that information)
4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or        
negotiations in connection with any labour relations matter  arising between the authority or a 
Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the Authority
5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in 
legal proceedings
6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes a) to give under any enactment a notice 
under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed  on a person; or b) to make an order or 
direction under any enactment
7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, 
investigation or prosecution of crime
8. Information falling within paragraph 3 above is not exempt information by virtue of that 
paragraph if it is required to be registered under—

(a) the Companies Act 1985;
(b) the Friendly Societies Act 1974;
(c) the Friendly Societies Act 1992;
(d) the Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978;
(e) the Building Societies Act 1986; or
(f) the Charities Act 1993.

9.Information is not exempt information if it relates to proposed development for which the local 
planning authority may grant itself planning permission pursuant to regulation 3 of the Town and 
Country Planning General Regulations 1992
10. Information which—

(a) falls within any of paragraphs 1 to 7 above; and
(b) is not prevented from being exempt by virtue of paragraph 8 or 9 above,is exempt 

information if and so long, as in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Cabinet and Council which are held 
at the Town Hall, Oriel Road, Bootle or the Town Hall, Lord Street, Southport.  The dates and 
times of the meetings are published on www.sefton.gov.uk or you may contact the Democratic 
Services Section on telephone number 0151 934 2068.

NOTE:  
For ease of identification, items listed within the document for the first time will appear shaded.

Dwayne Johnson
Chief Executive

Page 60

Agenda Item 8

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


APPENDIX 3

3

FORWARD PLAN INDEX OF ITEMS

Item Heading Officer Contact
Corporate Apprenticeship 
Strategy 2019 – 2022

Michael Mainwaring michael.mainwaring@sefton.gov.uk

Enterprise Principles Christian Rogers christian.rogers@sefton.gov.uk
Crosby Lakeside 
Redevelopment Project

Nicky Owen nicky.owen@sefton.gov.uk

Southport Theatre and 
Convention Centre Early E-
Procurement

Kate Edgar kate.edgar@sefton.gov.uk

Revenue and Capital Budget 
Update 2019/20 - October

Paul Reilly paul.reilly@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 4106

Hospitality Asset 
Improvements and Operations

Kate Edgar kate.edgar@sefton.gov.uk

Revenue and Capital Budget 
Update 2019/20 - November

Paul Reilly paul.reilly@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 4106

Revenue and Capital Budget 
Update 2019/20 - December

Paul Reilly paul.reilly@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 4106

Revenue and Capital Budget 
Update 2019/20 - January

Paul Reilly paul.reilly@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 4106

Council Tax Reduction (CTR) 
Scheme 2020/21, Council Tax 
Base 2020/21 and Changes to 
Council Tax Discounts for 
Empty Homes

Diane Turner diane.turner22@sefton.gov.uk

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Corporate Apprenticeship Strategy 2019 – 2022  
This report provides an update of the Councils Corporate 
Apprenticeship Programme, progress to date, an overview 
of recruitment, procurement and the approach to these 
issues given the environment. The report also sets out how 
we intend to deliver our Corporate Apprenticeship Strategy 
and Action Plan 2019-2022 to ensure we have and maintain 
a highly trained, ambitious and flexible workforce whilst 
continuing to attract and retain the very highest talent to live 
and work in Sefton to deliver our Vision 2030 and Core 
Purpose.

Decision Maker Cabinet

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX 3

4

Decision Expected 3 Oct 2019 

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

None

Method(s) of Consultation Not applicable

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Corporate Apprenticeship Strategy 2019 – 2022

Contact Officer(s)  details Michael Mainwaring michael.mainwaring@sefton.gov.uk

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Enterprise Principles  
Enterprise Principles

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 3 Oct 2019 
Decision due date for Cabinet changed from 05/09/2019 to 
03/10/2019.  Reason: ongoing strategy development is 
required

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

No

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Officers of the Council

Page 62

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX 3

5

Method(s) of Consultation Emails, meetings, telephone calls

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Enterprise Principles

Contact Officer(s)  details Christian Rogers christian.rogers@sefton.gov.uk

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Crosby Lakeside Redevelopment Project  
The Crosby Lakeside Activity Centre (CLAC) is a strategic 
Sefton Council owned asset in a key coastal location. The 
Centre provides facilities for water sports, gym and related 
leisure ('Leisure Activities') as well as hotel accommodation, 
events hosting and a bistro ('Hospitality Offer'). Originally 
designed as a fully accessible water sports centre the 
building suffers from a lack of coherence and its 
commerciality is not fully realised.

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 3 Oct 2019 
Decision due date for Cabinet changed from 05/09/2019 to 
03/10/2019.  Reason: additional information is required to 
enable the business case to be completed

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

No

Exempt Report Fully exempt (paragraphs 3 and 4)

Wards Affected Church

Scrutiny Committee Area Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Informal consultation with key members through meetings 
and formal consultation through Strategic Capital 
Investment Group. Formal consultation with senior officers 
through Growth Board and Elected Leadership Team. 

Method(s) of Consultation The project has been taken to Growth Board, Elected 
Leadership Team and Strategic Capital Investment Group 
meetings for consultation and informal consultation with key 
Members has also taken place.

List of Background Documents Crosby Lakeside Redevelopment Project

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX 3

6

to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Contact Officer(s)  details Nicky Owen nicky.owen@sefton.gov.uk

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Southport Theatre and Convention Centre Early E-
Procurement  
Options for the early procurement of a long-term partner at 
the Southport Theatre and Convention Centre  

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 3 Oct 2019 
Decision due date for Cabinet changed from 05/09/2019 to 
03/10/2019.  Reason: work is ongoing to produce the report 
and recommendations in respect of the re-procurement for 
STCC

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

No

Exempt Report Fully exempt (paragraphs 3 and 4)

Wards Affected Cambridge

Scrutiny Committee Area Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Officers of the Council

Method(s) of Consultation Emails, telephone calls, meetings

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

STCC early re-procurement

Contact Officer(s)  details Kate Edgar kate.edgar@sefton.gov.uk

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2019/20 - October  

Page 64

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX 3

7

Budget Monitoring Position for Revenue and Capital (based 
on August 2019)

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 3 Oct 2019 

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Cabinet, Chief Executive, Strategic Leadership Board, 
Trade Unions, Staff and relevant organisations as 
appropriate.

Method(s) of Consultation Individual budget saving options / amendments to the 
budget will be subject to consultation – internal and external 
to the Council (as appropriate).

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2019/20

Contact Officer(s)  details Paul Reilly paul.reilly@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 4106

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Hospitality Asset Improvements and Operations  
Hospitality Asset Improvements and Operations in respect 
of the Sands Public House and Whitehouse Café including 
building and re-development

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 7 Nov 2019 
Decision due date for Cabinet changed from 05/09/2019 to 
07/11/2019.  Reason: the wider Hospitality model can only 
be considered after and in light of the final proposals for 
Crosby Lakeside being agreed by Cabinet

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX 3

8

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Fully exempt (paragraphs 3 and 4)

Wards Affected Ainsdale; Cambridge

Scrutiny Committee Area Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Officers of the Council

Method(s) of Consultation Emails, meetings, telephone calls

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Hospitality Asset Improvements and Operations

Contact Officer(s)  details Kate Edgar kate.edgar@sefton.gov.uk

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2019/20 - 
November  
Budget Monitoring Position for Revenue and Capital (based 
on September 2019)

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 7 Nov 2019 

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Cabinet, Chief Executive, Strategic Leadership Board, 
Trade Unions, Staff and relevant organisations as 
appropriate.

Method(s) of Consultation Individual budget saving options / amendments to the 
budget will be subject to consultation – internal and external 

Page 66

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX 3

9

to the Council (as appropriate).

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2019/20

Contact Officer(s)  details Paul Reilly paul.reilly@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 4106

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2019/20 - 
December  
Budget Monitoring Position for Revenue and Capital (based 
on October 2019)

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 5 Dec 2019 

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Cabinet, Chief Executive, Strategic Leadership Board, 
Trade Unions, Staff and relevant organisations as 
appropriate.

Method(s) of Consultation Individual budget saving options / amendments to the 
budget will be subject to consultation – internal and external 
to the Council (as appropriate).

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2019/20

Contact Officer(s)  details Paul Reilly paul.reilly@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 4106

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX 3

10

Details of Decision to be taken Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2019/20 - January  
Budget Monitoring Position for Revenue and Capital (based 
on November 2019)

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 9 Jan 2020 

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Cabinet, Chief Executive, Strategic Leadership Board, 
Trade Unions, Staff and relevant organisations as 
appropriate.

Method(s) of Consultation Individual budget saving options / amendments to the 
budget will be subject to consultation – internal and external 
to the Council (as appropriate).

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2019/20

Contact Officer(s)  details Paul Reilly paul.reilly@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 4106

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Council Tax Reduction (CTR) Scheme 2020/21, Council 
Tax Base 2020/21 and Changes to Council Tax 
Discounts for Empty Homes  
The report provides a review of the Council Tax Reduction 
(CTR) Scheme for 2019/20; recommendation for the CTR 
Scheme for 2020/21; details of the Council Tax Base for 
2020/21 for Sefton Council and each Parish area; and  a 
recommendation to make changes to Council Tax discounts 
for empty homes from April 2020.

Decision Maker Cabinet

Council

Page 68

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX 3

11

Decision Expected 9 Jan 2020

23 Jan 2020 

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Private landlords, registered social landlords, local residents

Method(s) of Consultation on-line survey, postal survey, hard-copy of survey available 
at Bootle One Stop Shop and Southport One Stop Shop

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Council Tax Reduction (CTR) Scheme 2020/21, Council Tax 
Base 2020/21 and Changes to Council Tax Discounts for 
Empty Homes

Contact Officer(s)  details Diane Turner diane.turner22@sefton.gov.uk

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
(Regulatory, 
Compliance and 
Corporate 
Services)

Date of Meeting: 10 September 
2019 

Subject: Cabinet Member Report – June to August 2019

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer

Wards Affected: All

Cabinet Portfolio: Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

 No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No 

Summary:
To submit the Cabinet Member - Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services 
report for the period June to August 2019 relating to the remit of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.

Recommendation:

That the Cabinet Member - Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services report 
relating to the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee be noted.

Reasons for the Recommendation:

In order to keep Overview and Scrutiny Members informed, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member Reports to be 
submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

No alternative options have been considered because the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member Reports to be 
submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

Any financial implications associated with the Cabinet Member report that are 
referred to in this update are contained within the respective reports.

(A) Revenue Costs – see above

Page 71

Agenda Item 9



(B) Capital Costs – see above

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):

Legal Implications:

Equality Implications:
There are no equality implications. 

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: None directly applicable to this report. The Cabinet 
Member update provides information on activity within Councillor Lappin’s portfolio 
during a previous two/three-month period. Any reports relevant to her portfolio 
considered by the Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Committees during this period 
would contain information as to how such reports contributed to the Council’s Core 
Purpose. 

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: As above

Commission, broker and provide core services: As above

Place – leadership and influencer: As above

Drivers of change and reform: As above

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: As above

Greater income for social investment: As above

Cleaner Greener: As above

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Cabinet Member Update Report is not subject to FD/LD consultation.  Any 
specific financial and legal implications associated with any subsequent reports 
arising from the attached Cabinet Member update report will be included in those 
reports as appropriate

(B) External Consultations 

Page 72

Agenda Item 9



Not applicable 

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Paul Fraser
Telephone Number: 0151 934 2068
Email Address: paul.fraser@sefton.gov.uk 

Appendices:

The following appendix is attached to this report: 

Cabinet Member - (Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services) update report 
will be submitted to Members in due course

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 In order to keep Overview and Scrutiny Members informed, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member 
Reports to be submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

1.2 The most recent Cabinet Member report for the Regulatory, Compliance and 
Corporate Services portfolio will be submitted to members in due course.

Page 73

Agenda Item 9

mailto:paul.fraser@sefton.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET MEMBER REPORT
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services)

10 September 2019
Councillor Portfolio Period of Report

Paulette Lappin Regulatory, Compliance and 
Corporate Services

August 2019

CORPORATE SUPPORT SERVICES

Strategic Support Unit

Strategic Support’s main priority continues to be the support and project management of the Public-Sector 
Reform projects. All the open projects and sub-projects are being supported.  

In addition to this the team are supporting the refresh of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, Children and 
Young People’s Plan, SEND Joint Commissioning Framework and other key initiatives.

The Commissioning Support Team

Continues to lead and support several key commissioning projects/activities, PSR projects:- Personalisation, 
Acute Wrap around, also providing children’s placements and Quality Assurance activity.  

Priorities agreed with Interim Director or Adult Social Services and Interim Director of Children’s Services 
include, Supported Living and Community Support Provision, developing the procurement processes and re-
commissioning. Supporting better use of assistive technology in Supported Living Services. Performance 
management of domiciliary care and re-ablement to support effective hospital discharges including support 
to embed a single-handed care approach alongside social workers and occupational therapists. Procurement 
of statutory advocacy services and working with Healthwatch and Sefton Carers Centre to improve the 
specification for the services. Supporting provider engagement and exploring good practice. Re-procuring 
leaving care framework and Extra Care in existing schemes. In addition, the team will be providing support 
in developing a joint commissioning strategy for SEND provision. 

The team recently lead on a joint project with Sefton CCG’s to recommission a range of supported living and 
dispersed housing provision which was provided by Merseycare, as part of a pilot of Individual Service Funds. 
Working closely with Sefton Advocacy the feedback from the changes have been very positive with service 
users expressing a greater level of satisfaction in directing their own support. 

The Quality Team have been involved in and coordinated several multi-agency monitoring and safeguarding 
responses, ensuring that services are being provided in safe and effective ways to vulnerable people.  

The team continues to work closely with the other Liverpool City Region teams to share and develop good 
practice. 

The Procurement Team: 

Continues to assist and advise on procurement activity across the whole Council and has over 60 
procurement exercises at differing stages on the current work plan. Many of these are complex procurement 
exercises that exceed the OJEU procurement thresholds.  The team continues to work closely with all service 
areas and has introduced quarterly reporting aimed at improving the forward planning of procurement activity 
across the Council.

The Central Procurement team continue to be involved in working closely with the other Liverpool City Region 
Procurement teams. 

Page 75

Agenda Item 9



Performance and Business Intelligence Function.

The Service has been:
 Developing an operational performance dashboard to track SEND performance on requests for 

assessment, planning and issue of EHCPs.
 Processing and submitting Troubled Families claims and performance assessments.
 Developing performance reports for Localities and Early Help offer, addressing output and outcome 

measures.
 Developing Youth Offending performance reports and supporting the annual report.
 Developing Adult Social Care reablement, home care, and finance performance dashboards.
 Supporting school appeal mapping, collating provider data submissions, and undertaking data 

processing.
 Refreshing the Sefton ‘People and Place’ profile and Sefton Ward profiles.
 Developing GP profiles.
 Developing Family Wellbeing Centre profiles.
 Collating and finalising pupil measurement programme.
 Finalising Children’s Social Care statutory returns and developing and producing performance 

reports.
 Analysing and reporting 2018/19 academic year educational attainment and progress information for 

EYFS, Phonics, KS1 and KS2.

The immediate priorities for the Service are:
 Analysing and reporting 2018/19 academic year educational attainment and progress information for 

KS4.
 Analysing and reporting overall 2018/19 academic year educational attainment and progress 

information for EYFS, Phonics, KS1, KS2 and KS4 by characteristics and wider determinants, e.g. 
SEND, deprivation, etc.

 Developing the new Corporate Performance Framework.
 Design and commission a ‘sandpit’ enterprise data warehouse, which is a test system and central 

repositories of integrated data from one or more disparate sources used for reporting and data 
analysis.

 Support the categorising and processing of existing legacy paper records in the SEND department.
 Assume responsibility for coordinating all aspects of the consideration of complaints and 

representations, FOI and subject access requests relating to SEND, ensuring that enquires or 
concerns are dealt with satisfactorily, at the earliest possible stage.

The Service continues to:
 Support PSR programme and the day-to-day performance management of key services across the 

Council by analysing and providing data, producing detailed reports which generate valuable insight 
and supports better business decision making.

 Manage the provision of the Council’s ELAS services, monitoring the impact of the local Universal 
Credit full service roll-out and ensuring that those residents affected by welfare reform, low or irregular 
income and potential poverty receive appropriate support.

 Continue to support the Council to respond to comments, compliments complaints, FOI, Subject 
Access and other representations.

 Continue to provide comprehensive support across the Council relating to information management 
and data protection, assessment of proposed information sharing arrangement and the investigation 
of potential data breaches.

 Completed the categorising and processing of existing legacy paper records from across various 
Council departments.

The Communications Team

The Communications Team continues to support on number of key Council priorities, recent work has 
included:-

Page 76

Agenda Item 9



 Launched Sefton’s Big Picnic both internally and externally to bring colleagues and communities 
together to mark World Friendship Day and support the team’s wider Year of Friendship campaign to 
tackle loneliness.  Events were so successful it will become an annual event.

 Launched the STAR awards for staff.
 Worked closely with leadership and elected members on the recent SEND inspection.
 Continue to support the preparations for Borough of Culture 2020, meeting potential partners and 

community groups who can help bring the programme to life as well as co-hosting a workshop with 
Sefton CVS to harness support from groups. 

 Delivered impactful messages which reached over 10,000 for Clean Air Day to highlight all the positive 
work we have been doing in this arena. This included covering the launch of the Clean Air Crew and 
the expert panel day with school children at the Eco Centre in Southport. 

 Supported the Merseyside Resilience Forum on a live exercise with Merseyside Fire and Rescue at 
Irlam House, Bootle in light of the Grenfell tragedy, to test plans and procedures.

 Backed the LGA to apply pressure on the government to publish the long-awaited adult social care 
green paper, with the Council calling for immediate action and funding.

 Produced a number of publications internally and externally - including MySefton Showcase, Aiming 
High, School Matters and One Council Brief.

 Covered LCR Pride, which included a video with our New Beginnings LGBTQ+ youth group and 
comments from CEO Dwayne Johnson who joined the march this year. 

 Unveiled the vision for Crosby Coastal Park with a video to encourage people to take part in the 
consultation, which reached almost 7,000.

CORPORATE RESOURCES

Corporate Finance

Outturn 2018/2019

The Council’s revenue budget final outturn position for 2018/2019 was presented to Cabinet on 25th July 
2019.  This reported an underspend of £0.330m compared to the initial estimates. General Balances 
therefore now stand at £7.539m.

During 2018/2019 School Balances reduced by £1.808m to £13.596m.

The Council’s capital budget final outturn position for 2018/2019 was also presented to Cabinet on 25th July 
2019.

Statement of Accounts 2018/2019

The Council’s final Statement of Accounts (including the Annual Governance Statement) was approved by 
Audit and Governance on 24th July 2019 and published on 31st July.  The Council’s auditors, EY, issued an 
unqualified opinion on the accounts and also on their Value for Money assessment.  Only 57% of local 
authorities managed to publish the accounts with an audit opinion by the deadline of 31st July.   

EY will conclude their audit once they have completed their work on the Whole of Government Accounts 
which has a deadline of 30th September. 

Budget Monitoring 2019/2020

The most recent forecast revenue budget position (as at the end of June 2019) was reported to Cabinet on 
25th July 2019. This highlighted the significant pressures being experienced in several service areas, 
particularly Children’s Social Care, Locality Services and Home to School Transport. The reported forecast 
overspend was £3.238m. The report indicated that officers would look to identify mitigating actions and 
continue to review all budget forecasts, including current vacancies and non-essential expenditure, with a 
view to meeting this shortfall.  The next forecast (as at the end of July 2019) will be reported to Cabinet on 
5th September.

Page 77

Agenda Item 9



Internal Audit

Work to deliver the Internal Audit Plan continues, with audits having been completed in the period in the 
following areas:

Recommendations
Audit Title 

Audit 
Opinion High Medium Low

2019/2020

Corporate Governance (Annual Governance 
Statement) 

Moderate 1 10 1

ICT Leavers - draft Moderate 0 4 2
Accounts Payable Moderate 8 3 0
Accounts Receivable Major 20 8 0
Melling Primary School Moderate 1 5 1
Private Vehicle Sales Follow-up review Recommendations implemented
Treasury Management follow-up review Recommendations implemented
M58 2019/20 Q1 Grant Certification Assurance provided to facilitate certification
STEP 2019/20 Q1 Grant Certification Assurance provided to facilitate certification
Troubled Families – Period 14 Grant 
Certification

Assurance provided to facilitate certification

A59 2019/20 Q1 Grant Certification Assurance provided to facilitate certification
Urban Traffic Control 2018/19 Q4 Grant 
Certification

Assurance provided to facilitate certification

Urban Traffic Control 2019/20 Q1 Grant 
Certification

Assurance provided to facilitate certification

ASC Systems Development (previously LAS 
Project)

Ongoing Assurance Provided

LCS Project Ongoing Assurance Provided 
Operational Risk Register Ongoing support provided
Business Continuity Ongoing support provided

Reports in italics are draft reports.

Responsible officers have given assurance that the recommendations made in the reports will be 
implemented within reasonable timescales.  Follow up audit work will be undertaken to substantiate this.

Health and Safety

During the period, the following key pieces of work/projects have been undertaken:
 

 A new temporary Senior Health and Safety Officer has been appointed to provide cover during the re-
structure of the Risk and Audit Team.

 An Annual Report on health and safety has been developed to provide assurance on the progress of 
embedding health and safety within the Council. The report is due to be presented to the Cabinet in 
the Autumn of 2019.

 There has been a focus on designing and delivering a risk assessment course to be rolled out to 
approximately 500 managers in the Council who manage staff. The training is due to be delivered in 
October/ November 2019 with a projected refresh of the risk assessment guidance to staff.

 There has been work started on designing a Council wide training needs analysis tool for health and 
safety which will lead to a Council wide Health and Safety Training Plan.

The Health and Safety Team have been since Christmas undertaking some site based statutory buildings 
compliance reviews to determine the current position.

There was a total of four RIDDOR accidents during the quarter. 

Page 78

Agenda Item 9



All RIDDOR incidents are reviewed by the Health and Safety team to ensure that the accident is properly 
investigated and that the lessons learnt are shared with other service areas where appropriate.

Insurance

During the period, the following key pieces of work/projects have been undertaken:

 A considerable amount of the Team’s time has been spent on preparation for the upcoming 
renewal of insurances for the Authority and associated subsidiary companies (Sefton New 
Directions, Sandway Homes). After collaborating with all service areas and senior 
management, proposal forms have been completed and sent to Brokers in order that they 
can present Insurers views on cover, rates and premiums prior to the renewal date of 29th 
September 2019.  Initial indications show that there should be no major changes.

 A mini Tender exercise is also underway via The Chest to enable the procurement of more 
specialist policies in a more transparent way and to identify value for money.  These policies 
relate to Premises Pollution, Directors and Officers Insurance for the Mayors Charity, Sefton 
New Directions and Sandway Homes, and Professional Indemnity and Public Lability for 
Sefton Arc and were procured last year outside of the main Insurance Tender due to their 
specialist nature. In addition, quotes for Cyber cover have also been requested and these will 
be considered in line with the agreement between Sefton and Agilisys for a decision to be 
made on such a requirement for the Council going forward.

 In June, the Team attended the annual Alarm Conference at Manchester University.  As well 
as this providing an opportunity to network with peers from other local Authorities and various 
suppliers in the market (Insurers, Brokers, Loss Adjusters etc), the Team also attended 
workshops where topics included legal updates, challenges of commercialism, risk 
assessments, fire investigation and abuse. 

  
 Following on from the Alarm Conference and contacts made, initial meetings have recently 

taken place with a number of Insurance Brokers which it is hoped will assist with the upcoming 
tender for such services (current contract due to end 31st March 2020).  By early engagement, 
each party can realise expectations required of them and hopefully this will lead on to the 
presentation of good quality Tender submissions to achieve optimum results in the overall 
exercise.

 
 To assist Tourism colleagues in the running of their annual events, cancellation insurance 

has been sought and procured on their behalf for both the Southport Airshow and British 
Musical Fireworks Championships.       

  
 The Council continues to defend cases robustly to protect the public purse.  The team also 

works extensively with Service Teams to improve the management of insurable risk in areas 
where there are high numbers of claims.  The Council generally has high defensibility rates 
and such risk management activity will assist in maintaining and potentially improving the 
position further.  An area that requires strengthening has recently been identified within the 
Authority’s car parks and work is currently underway to assist the relevant service areas in 
gaining the best out of their available resources in order to provide as much of a defence to 
claims received as possible. 

 To assist with strengthening awareness of the Team’s areas of work, the Intranet page for 
Insurance has recently been updated, in line with others within the Risk & Audit Service.

Risk and Resilience

During the period, the following key pieces of work/projects have been undertaken:-

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



 Implementations of the actions identified in the Risk and Resilience Improvement plan continue to 
take the work areas of Emergency Planning, Business Continuity and Risk Management forward. 
Actions include:
o Supporting a live play exercise with One Vision Housing and Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service 

which took place on 27 June at Irlam House, Bootle.
o Participation in a multi - agency table top exercise with Merseyside Resilience Forum to consider 

implications and response to a cyber attack.
o A briefing to Chairs of local Safety Advisory Groups in regard to arrangements for Operation 

London Bridge plans.

 The Risk Team have reviewed a sample of operational risk registers returned for the quarter 2 period 
and provided feedback to risk owners for action at the quarter 3 review period.

 An exercise has been completed to explore positive risk or risk opportunity, initially within the Risk 
and Audit team. The learning from this session will be further explored with all service areas across 
the council.

 The Corporate Risk Register has been reviewed and is due to be presented to the Audit and 
Governance Committee for approval. As part of the review process meetings have been held with risk 
owners to assess the current position of their risks and further meetings will take place to ensure 
continual improvement to risk management arrangements across the Council. 

 Following completion of Business Impact Analyses (BIA) for all service areas of the Council, a 
template for a Business Continuity Recovery plan was developed. The data collected from the BIA’s 
and from further meetings with relevant plan owners was used to populate the recovery plans. This 
work is now almost completed.

 A member of the Risk Team gave a presentation on all aspects of implementation of a Business 
Continuity Management system at the recent Finance Department away day. This raised awareness 
of Business Continuity arrangements in place across the departmental teams and introduced the E 
learning module for all staff to complete. 

 Participation in an exercise to test the planning for Southport Airshow which will be held 6 – 8 
September. 

 Work has started around the production of a Finance Department emergency plan to highlight specific 
capability and contribution that may be required as part of the Council’s overall emergency response.

Energy and Environmental Management

This team manages the Council’s (including schools and New Directions) energy and water supplies, carbon 
management, environmental education and community domestic energy/affordable warmth programmes.

Specific actions to note:

 Gas and Electricity options from within our existing framework options are being considered for 
2020/21 

 Water supply, options appraisal report and Single Use Plastics (SUP) strategy reports were accepted 
at Cabinet (July 2019) and work is now progressing on the procurement of a managing agent for 
water supply (utility). We are working with Communications on the SUP action plan and have 
published our strategy on the Council’s website.

 Work is progressing on three Sefton Schools to retrofit LED low energy lighting using Salix funding. 
The works will achieve significant energy, carbon and monetary savings and should be completed by 
September 2019. Case studies will be developed to demonstrate the potential to other schools.

 We are preparing baseline and background information on the Council’s and Sefton’s carbon footprint, 
to assist with work on Climate change (Climate emergency declaration). To be provided to Andrea 
watts and Stephan Van Arendsen.

 A business administration apprentice is now in Post.
 Work on developing a commercialisation model for the educational resources at the Southport Eco 

Centre is ongoing. Page 80

Agenda Item 9



 Work is ongoing to consider solar generation at Sefton owned sites as well as the development of a 
Sefton owned solar farm.

 Sefton’s revised Statement of Intent required as part of our Eco Flex offer (Energy Company 
Obligation) has been published.

Property and Facilities Management

 This Team manages the Council’s asset and property portfolio including pro-active programme of 
property disposals to both rationalise the portfolio to remove unproductive assets and realise capital 
receipts. This process assists in the reduction of revenue costs and raises capital which contributes 
to the funding of the Council’s Capital and Growth Programmes.

Specific Actions to note:

 Supervision and implementation of continuing moves as part of Agile Working Strategy
 Procurement of dilapidations advice for Merton House
 Service of interim Schedule of Dilapidations on Heritage Centre Southport
 Asset Valuations and Report for 2019 Accounts completed including the procurement of Strand Asset 

Valuation for next five years.
 Project management and reporting for Growth Board on Sandbrook Way
 Proposed acquisition of Bootle Post Office in conjunction with Council Consultant
 Heads of Terms and Report for disposal Coffee House Bridge in conjunction with Council Consultant
 Negotiations for joint disposal of St Wilfrid’s School site with RC Agent subject to Section 77 approval 

from Secretary of State.  
 Completion of Academy Transfers and Leases for Churchtown Primary School and Kew Woods 

Primary School
 Completion of Lease of attractions Southport Pier
 Discussions with HM Land Registry over registration of unregistered Council land.
 Assisting Sandway Homes on initial tranche of sites for development at Barton’s Close, Meadow Lane 

and Buckley Hill Lane
 Heads of Terms and Cabinet Member report for cable station landing site Eco centre Southport
 Expression of Interest Cabinet Member report Carnegie Library
 Negotiations with Liverpool County FA for a Lease of playing fields at Drummond Road
 Procurement of Agent and liaison over surplus Council sites for Growth Programme
 Completion of nominations for Assets of Community Value at Aintree Youth Centre and Lonsdale 

Road Formby  
 Management of Consultant for Rating
 Working Party with Green Sefton for use of Assets in their portfolio

ICT

Cyber Security 

The Authority is currently undergoing its annual review of Cyber Security in line with PSN (Public Services 
Network) requirements and work is underway to ensure any required remedial works are completed in line 
with project timelines.  Specialist Cyber Security training for ICT Client staff is planned for September 2019, 
with wider awareness raising for all staff now planned for Autumn, to avoid the summer break period.

A Cyber Security briefing has been completed for members and the quarterly Cyber Newsletter circulated to 
all Councillors for information.  A briefing session has been completed for Information Asset Owners with a 
further session planned for members of SLB.

Transformation 

Deployment of end user devices continues at pace, rollout is now underway for all Councillors, this is due to 
be completed by the end of October.  

Page 81

Agenda Item 9



Email migration to the cloud is also now underway, migrations are being completed daily; this activity is 
planned in parallel to the issuing of new mobile phones, to reduce any operational impact

Office 365 rapid upskill training has now been delivered to 48 colleagues across the organisation, these 48 
ICT Champions are now enabled to support their teams in using the new 0365 platform.  Further sessions 
are planned in October and then first quarter 2020.   Me learning content for Office 365 is now live on Sefton’s 
Learning Platform.

Work continues in the scoping of phase 2 projects, alongside a detailed review of the core infrastructure and 
an assessment of the investment required, to ensure the continued provision of a robust and secure network. 

ICT Contracts/Procurement

A Contracts Management Strategy was presented to and ratified by Cabinet on the 7th of February, the ICT 
client team continue to work closely with the Legal team on contract novation’s as well as liaising with the 
procurement team and service areas around new procurements as required.  

The ICT client team are working closely with Strategic Support colleagues to procure a new CRM system, 
which will replace the legacy Northgate product, which is out of support. In addition, the Client team is 
supporting the Revenues and Benefits team on their procurement activity.

Award of the mobile phones tender is now completed, and the ICT Client has prioritised the ordering of new 
devices for lone workers currently without a phone, a further programme of handset upgrades will then follow. 

ICT Support 

Service improvement activity continues, with the implementation of extended support hours and the delivery 
of a Service notification tool already complete.   In May Agilisys introduced the Self-Service Web Portal and 
Live Chat, the latter has already proved popular.  In September this year the Service Desk will move to 
Agilisys in Rochdale, knowledge transfer is underway without any impact on contract performance.

Infrastructure

Work continues the ICT project to enable all EIP bases, all phase one are now completed and work is well 
underway for the remaining EIP bases.  A full review of the ICT Infrastructure is now completed, and work is 
underway to refresh some of the core infrastructure as well as extending the corporate WiFi network to 
support Agile Working. 

In addition, Sefton has now joined with neighbouring authorities, St. Helens, Halton, Knowsley, Liverpool, 
Mersey Travel and Wirral to provide Gov Roam, which supports agile working across discrete networks 
enabling colocation and regional teams, this will be ready for release prior to Christmas 2019 

Revenues and Benefits  

Council Tax and Business Rates collection

The Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government released the annual performance figures for 
Council Tax and Business Rates collection for 2018/19 during the last week in June. These figures show that 
Sefton is again the best performing authority in Merseyside for both Council Tax and Business Rates 
collection. Sefton is the 3rd highest performing metropolitan authority for collecting Business Rates.

For Business Rates, performance nationally fell on average by 0.1% compared to 2017/18. Within the 
metropolitan class of authorities, average performance remained static.
Sefton’s performance in 2018/19 was 99.2% which represents a rise in performance of 0.5% when compared 
to 2017/18. This places Sefton as 3rd highest performer compared to all 36 metropolitan authorities.

For Council Tax, performance nationally fell by 0.1% compared to 2017/18. Within the metropolitan class of 
authorities, average performance also fell by an average of 0.1%. Average collection performance for all 
authorities in the Liverpool City Region fell by an average of 0.2% compared to 2017/18.

Page 82

Agenda Item 9



The Government’s welfare reform agenda, and the minimum contribution requirements of the Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme (CTRS), continue to impact on average performance levels.

As each local authority can determine its own CTRS, it means that direct comparisons with other authorities 
must be kept within the context of the differing schemes adopted by authorities.

Sefton’s performance was 96.0% in 2018/19, a fall of 0.3% compared to 2017/18. This performance keeps 
Sefton outside of the top quartile for metropolitan authorities in 11th place out of 36 authorities.

For the current year, 2019/20, at the end of quarter one, collection performance for both Council Tax and 
Business Rates is slightly higher than at the same date in 2018/19.  This is closely monitored and further 
updates will be provided. 

Benefits

Speed of processing for Housing Benefit new claims and changes continues to compare well to national 
official statistics published by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP); 

Preparation is well-underway for the external audit of the Housing Benefit subsidy claim for 2018/19. The 
final provisional position for 2018/19 is that total subsidy claimed will be £79,594Million compared to 
£92,235Million in 2017/18.  As expected, expenditure continues to reduce as more working-age claimants 
move to Universal Credit. 

Customer Services

The Customer Services team continues to experience a reduction in traditional contact methods via the 
telephone and visits to the One Stop Shops as there is more take-up of online services.

The team has experienced a reduction in contact for most services, except for taxi-licensing. The team 
continues to meet with colleagues from Taxi-Licensing to review and monitor service delivery arrangements. 

Universal Credit 

The Council Tax team has processes in place with the DWP to collect Council Tax debt directly from Universal 
Credit via an Attachment of Benefit (AOB). At the end of quarter one 2019/20, there are approximately 2,600 
AOBs in place with a value of approximately £950,000. Many customers have multiple debts and more than 
one AOB pending.

The Council Tax team withholds recovery where it is aware that an application for UC has been submitted 
unless the claimant has indicated that they can still make some payment in which case a temporary payment 
arrangement can be agreed.

Universal Credit Fraud

There has been recent media coverage of ‘UC Advanced Payment’ fraud. A number of instances of this type 
of UC fraud have been identified in the Sefton area which the team has escalated to the DWP – these cases 
have been investigated and resolved.  The DWP are in the process of producing posters to be displayed in 
Jobcentre Plus Offices warning customers about the spike in UC fraud. They also intend to provide posters 
to display in the Council’s One Stop Shops to raise awareness of the UC fraud.

PERSONNEL DEPARTMENT

Operational Issues

Advice and support continues to be provided to all service areas.  Consultation is taking place with staff and 
the trade unions in respect of a number of staffing issues and weekly meetings are timetabled as necessary.

Various reviews and restructures across the organisation are continuing relative to budget savings/Public 
Sector Reform projects.  These are the subject of trade union consultation.  Briefings continue to take place 
regarding school budget issues.

Page 83

Agenda Item 9



The Department continues to have a full programme of work in respect of disciplinary, grievance and dignity 
at work issues.  Support to service areas in respect of staffing reviews/restructures is being provided, together 
with advice and support in the management of sickness absence cases that are cause for concern and 
complex staffing matters.  

Pay and Grading and Establishment Control Team 

Job evaluation continues relative to all Council and School posts for new or revised roles.  Job evaluations 
are also conducted relative to any operational and service reviews to maximise efficiencies as part of 
restructuring exercises across the Council. The Establishment Control team are then responsible for building 
any revised structures and changes to reporting hierarchies into the Councils operating systems. 

The TUPE transfer of the former Arvato staff took place on 1st October 2018.  Staff within Transactional HR, 
Pensions, Payroll, and the Business Support Unit have now been aligned to the Councils pay, terms and 
conditions effective from 1st July 2019.   A review of Finance and Audit has recently been completed.  The 
review of the Revenues, Benefits and Customer Services and Operations support sections is well underway 
and consultation with staff and Trade Unions will commence in due course relative to the review proposals.  

The Establishment Control Panel takes place every 2 weeks to consider requests in relation to the release 
of vacancies and the approval of any changes to the Establishment held in ResourceLink.  All changes to the 
Establishment are mapped to ensure correct procedures are followed.  Establishment Control are currently 
reviewing the Establishment Control Forms and associated guidance to managers to try and implement in 
changes to make the process more user friendly.

Establishment Control review safeguarding checks held against posts e.g. Disclosure and Barring Service 
(DBS formally CRB), Health Care Professional Council (HCPC) etc. with Heads of Service and amending as 
required.  This now includes safer recruitment checks.  The team also manages and controls the temporary 
end dates relative to all fixed term contracts.  

Regrading applications and appeals are processed in line with the Council protocol.  

The team undertakes the review of HAY graded positions for new posts and the evaluation of HAY posts 
stemming from any revised proposals to the HAY grading structure.

The National Joint Council for Local Government Services have recently amended the National Agreement 
on Pay and Conditions of Service relative to the calculation of Term-time only (TTO) salaries.  Team members 
are involved in the potential adoption of the NJC advisory model and are liaising with neighbouring authorities, 
Managers and Headteachers relative to its potential implementation.   A consideration of new case law on 
holiday pay is also taking place.

Team members are involved in service reviews and work to support transformational proposals and potential 
changes to service delivery. One team member is involved in the collection and presentation of data required 
for the achievement of the National award of the Workforce Wellbeing Charter as part of the EIP3 project.

Management of the Matrix contract relative to the recruitment of all Agency workers continues along with the 
management of sickness absence, including production of reports, analysis and management data. 

Transactional HR Payroll and Pension (THRP) Services

Following the TUPE transfer of Arvato staff to the Council on 1st October 2018, there has been a restructure 
(as part of PSR9) of the THRP team.  This was effective from 1st July 2019.

A working Group has been set up to introduce workflow to help recruitment, transactional HR, payroll and 
pension processes. The first process is for staff terminations and the voluntary resignation/retirement process 
is now live for all Council staff.  The Working Group is also looking at the best way to handle other reasons 
for leaving e.g. dismissal, redundancy etc. and how these will be managed.  

There are 2 other processes which are being looked at, to be put into workflow and they are changes to hours 
and extensions to temporary arrangements.  The changes to hours process is currently being built and 
Hawthorne Road have agreed to pilot the new process.

Page 84

Agenda Item 9



The team are also looking at a solution for removing the need for paper claim forms and this is in the very 
early stages of development.

The Pensions Officer is continuing to work closely with the Transformation team and Personnel Officers to 
provide redundancy/pension information when required.

Occupational Health

For the period January - June 2019, a total of 537 referrals were made to the Health Unit, with 1534 
appointments being arranged. This is an increase on the corresponding period in 2018 when 431 referrals 
were made resulting in 1457 appointments being made. The majority of appointments were made for staff 
employed within Schools the breakdown of all appointments is:-

 Adult Social Care 217 Appointments, 62 Staff
 EIP 206 Appointments 60 Staff
 Corporate Services 191 Appointments 59 Staff
 Education Excellence 422 Appointments 197 Staff
 Economic Growth and Housing 45 Appointments 12 Staff
 Locality Services 314 Appointments 92 Staff
 Children’s Social Care 77 Appointments 27 Staff
 Strategic Support 62 Appointments 28 Staff

Workforce Learning and Development (CLC)

Training/eLearning 

We continue to work with Strategic Support and Business Intelligence to develop a Customer Service, 
Complaints and Dealing with Challenging Customers training programme. The aim of the training is to support 
staff to be more confident and competent in dealing with complaints, particularly in relation to challenging 
customers, be empowered to make decisions in relation to complaints and providing quality responses.  

SCLC in partnership with the LSCB and Public Health recently launched a new eLearning course called 
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs).  ACEs are stressful events occurring in childhood that can have a 
significant impact upon the individual and this can result in a range of conditions in adult hood.  The course 
was rolled out to all Council staff including LSCB partners and to date 57 learners have successfully 
completed the eLearning.  

We are currently investigating options to deliver Mental Health First Aid Training from January 2020.  The 
course teaches staff how to identify, understand and help someone who may be experiencing a mental health 
issue, and teaches you to listen, reassure and respond, even in a crisis, potentially stopping a crisis from 
happening.  

It is envisaged the course will enable staff from across the organisation to support their colleagues, service 
users and members of the community who may be suffering from a low level Mental Health issue to avoid 
further escalation and/or input from statutory services.

Apprenticeships

We continue to promote and access the Apprenticeship levy, have established a pool of lead training 
providers and we continue to raise awareness of the apprenticeship levy with internal departments and 
schools.  From 1st April 2018 to date we currently have 158 apprentices registered on an apprenticeship 
programme.  102 are existing staff and 56 were recruited to new positions. 

A draft Apprenticeship Strategy 2019 - 2022 was developed which sets out as an employer the positive action 
we take in our approach to apprenticeships as part of our workforce development strategy.  A paper was also 
produced for the Cabinet Member for Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate services to provide an update 
of the Councils Corporate Apprenticeship Programme, progress to date, an overview of some of the 
challenges we’ve experienced with regards to recruitment, procurement and the solutions to these 
challenges.  Following the publication of the paper we plan to launch the strategy.  

Page 85

Agenda Item 9



We are currently in the process of identifying a suitable Higher Education Institution (HEI) and a training 
provider to work in partnership to deliver degree level (6 and 7) Leadership and Management qualifications 
from 2nd September 2019.  

Agile Working

SCLC continues to support the ICT Transformation programme across the Council through the delivery of 
joint drop-in sessions with support from Agilisys.  The aim of these sessions is to support staff who need 
extra help with One Drive, SharePoint and OneNote.  Dates have now been agreed until December 2019.

A further session of ICT Digital Champions training was agreed and will take place on 16th October 2019. 
The training will ensure we have a cohort of ICT Champions by service area who can support their peers with 
any ICT related issues e.g. Office 365, SharePoint, OneDrive etc.   

Organisational Development/One Council Network 

Recent activities include: 

 Engaged with employees from across the organisation who are willing to become Digital Champions 
 Increased attendance at the One Council Network from potential Champions 
 Supported with the promotion of the Festival of Golf 
 Collated training data for localities 
 Created an action plan for the Year of Friendship; this will be driven forward by one of the thematic 

value groups 
 Met with employees/managers to promote One Council 
 Delivered a development session to Children’s Social Care Managers 
 Created a script to recruit new One Council Champions 
 Started planning for the NGLP Graduate Programme 
 Had an initial meeting with an HEI/Training Provider to discuss the L6&7 Management Apprenticeship 

Programme. 

Democratic Services

Overview and Scrutiny

General Matters

Council Motion – Climate Change Emergency

The Council at its meeting held on 18 July 2019 approved a Council Motion about Climate Change 
Emergency. The Council resolution is multifaceted and includes the following:

“Request that Overview and Scrutiny Management Board consider the impact of climate change and the 
environment when reviewing Council policies and strategies and charge Task and Finish groups to also 
consider those impacts in any report and every topic”

It is envisaged that the cross-cutting nature of the climate change topic will involve all Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees, as well as the Management Board, becoming involved in the work of task and finish groups. 
Precise details have not yet been agreed but updates will be provided to Members when more information 
is available.  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report

The Annual Report containing information on the activity of the four Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
and the Management Board during 2018/19 was considered and approved by Council at its meeting held 
on 18 July 2019. 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services)

The Committee’s first meeting of the year was held on 18 June 2019. The Committee approved its Work 
Programme for the forthcoming year and considered reports relating to the “Tool-Kit” for the Armed Forces 

Page 86

Agenda Item 9



Covenant; and progress made in respect of the recommendations formulated by the Area Committees 
Working Group and approved by Cabinet. 

Working Group Update

Council’s Ethical Business Practices Working Group

Councillors Bradshaw, Doyle, Killen, McKinley, John Sayers and Yvonne Sayers had agreed to be 
Members of the Working Group. Councillor McKinley has been appointed as the Lead Member.

The Working Group has now met on five occasions and the Working Group’s next meeting will be to draw 
up recommendations.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health)

The Committee’s first meeting of the year was held on 25 June 2019, and the Committee approved its Work 
Programme for the remainder of the Municipal Year. Reports on the Seven Day GP Access, the Public 
Health Annual Report and the NHS Five Year Plan were considered.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Regeneration and Skills)

The Committee’s first meeting of the year was held on 2 July 2019. The Committee approved its Work 
Programme for the forthcoming year and considered a report relating to the annual monitoring of Housing 
Selective and Additional (HMO) Licensing Schemes; and the final report of the Special Educational Needs 
and Disability Provision (SEND) Working Group.

Working Group Update

Effectiveness of the Council’s Enforcement Activity Working Group

Councillors Booth, Dowd, Michael O’Brien, Pullin, Roche and John Sayers have agreed to be Members of 
the Working Group.

The Working Group has met on three occasions and has approved its Scoping Document; and received 
presentations on the legal enforcement powers available to the Council and planning enforcement. It is 
anticipated that the next meeting of the Working Group will be held in September 2019.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Children’s Services and Safeguarding)

A Special Meeting of the Committee took place on 1 July 2019, to consider the findings of the Ofsted and 
Care Quality Commission joint local area special educational needs and/or disabilities (SEND) re-visit. The 
Committee will consider the Improvement Plan for the service at its meeting to be held during September 
2019.

The first scheduled meeting of the Committee was held on 9 July 2019. The Committee approved its Work 
Programme for the remainder of the Municipal Year and considered reports relating to actions being 
undertaken since the Review of Health Services for Children Looked After and Safeguarding in Sefton; the 
Public Health Annual Report; and the final report of the Special Educational Needs and Disability Provision 
(SEND) Working Group. The Committee also established a working group to review the topic of persistent 
pupil absence.

Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee (LCR CA O&S)

Senior Democratic Services Officers regularly attend LCR CA O&S meetings to be kept abreast of scrutiny 
developments across the City Region. The most recent meeting to be attended was the LCR CA O&S held 
on 19 June 2019. Details of this meeting and all other LCR CA O&S meetings can be obtained using the 
following link:

https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=365&Year=0

Page 87

Agenda Item 9

https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=365&Year=0


Overview and Scrutiny Management Board

The Management Board meets to keep the Chairs and Vice-Chairs of the four Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees abreast of O&S developments across the Council.

The Management Board at its next meeting will appoint its Chair for the 2019/20 Municipal Year. As 
mentioned above, the Management Board will play an important role in co-ordination of work in respect of 
the Climate Change Emergency Council Motion. 

Admission Appeals

In addition to the provision of administrative support for meetings of the Council, Cabinet, and Committees, 
the Section has also organised and clerked school admission appeal hearings. The recent transfer period 
has seen the section deal with 158 applications for secondary schools and 75 applications for primary schools 
during the period from 1 April to the end of term on 23 July 2019. 

This represents an increase in the number of appeals in respect of High Schools but a reduction in the number 
of appeals in respect of Primary Schools compared with the same period in 2018. Overall the total number 
of appeals for the transfer period 2019 was very similar to the number in 2018.

The Section has also organised an exclusion independent review in respect of a High School in the Borough. 

The Section will look to arrange training for panel members for exclusion reviews in the autumn and 
admissions and appeals in the new year.

Civic and Mayoral Services

Mayor of Sefton’s Charity Ball

On Saturday 28th March 2020, the Mayor of Sefton will be hosting her annual Gala Charity Ball, it promises 
to be a fantastic evening of entertainment, tickets and promotion will begin late August, early September.

Mons Delegation Visit

A delegation from our twinned city of Mons will be visiting our Borough from 11th -13th October, part of the 
visit will involve discussing several projects covering the next 5 years, Claudine Stuaert, the President of 
Mons Twinning Committee, recently visited from 16th-19th July to both meet the Mayor of Sefton and also to 
have a meeting with key people who will be involved in these projects. The projects include celebrating Sport, 
Music, the Anniversary of the Battle of Mons, and Exhibitions. The meeting was extremely positive and will 
be expanded further during the visit in October.

Mayor Visits to Gdansk

The Mayor of Sefton recently visited Sefton’s other twinned city Of Gdansk, Poland from 2nd – 5th June to 
celebrate the anniversary of Gdansk gaining the free vote. The Mayor will also be visiting Gdansk again from 
30th August – 2nd September to participate in the commemorations of the 80th Anniversary of the outbreak of 
World War 2.

Electoral Services

The team have been involved in post-election activities for the local and parish council election and the 
European Parliamentary election in May.  A number of parish council matters arose from the elections with 
by-elections being held in Melling (11 July 2019) and Sefton & Lunt Villages North Ward (1 August 2019).

The annual canvass for the 2020 Register of Electors started on the 22 July 2019 and will run through to the 
30 November 2019.  During this period, a review of polling arrangements across the borough will take place.

Preparations are under way for local government, Police and Crime Commissioner and Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority Mayoral Election on the 7 May 2020.

Page 88

Agenda Item 9



REGISTRARS

 General Register Office (GRO) Annual Performance Report. This is submitted at the end of April each 
year to GRO (copy of 2018/19 report attached). The following comments were made by GRO 
Compliance Officer Pamela Kyle in respect of the registration service.

‘It is pleasing to note the excellent level of service achieved by the local authority during the past year. 
In particular, your excellent timeliness figures for births and still births, which exceed the national 
target of 98% by achieving 99% and 100% respectively. MCCD Deaths also exceeded the target of 
90% by achieving 95%; this is facilitated by your robust diary management checks. Additionally, you 
have successfully met and exceeded the performance targets for appointment availability for births, 
deaths, still-births and notice of marriage and civil partnerships. I am pleased to note the assurance 
you have provided in relation to the local application of the Public Protection and Counter-fraud 
Framework. On the basis of your reported information, you have provided a sufficient level of 
assurance.  In summary, I am pleased to report that you are performing really well against the Key 
Performance Indicators and national standards, compliance against the PPCF framework and finally, 
in your service delivery. 

Congratulations on your service performance and achievements and I look forward to working with 
you in this coming year.’

 The service continues to meet its KPI’s in terms of performance and during the first week in August 
100% of deaths without coronial involvement were registered within 5 days.

 Opposite Sex Civil Partnerships - The government is not able to commit to a date for implementation 
of opposite-sex civil partnerships at this stage. The changes to the law extending civil partnerships 
and the associated rights and benefits to opposite-sex civil partners will be set out in regulations which 
are being prepared in parallel. These regulations will need to be debated in both Houses of Parliament 
before they can come into force. The government has, however, restated its aim that opposite-sex 
couples will be able to both give notice and register their civil partnerships before the end of the year.  
Due to the unpaid shutdown period we don’t have access to Southport or Waterloo Town Halls – the 
Register Office at Southport has a separate entrance. This could result in adverse publicity if couples 
wish to hold their civil partnership on the first possible date and we are unable to offer that.

 Marriage schedule system - The Civil Partnerships, Marriages and Deaths (Registration Etc.) Act will 
modernise how marriages are registered for the first time since 1837, through the introduction of a 
marriage schedule system and registration in an electronic register. The electronic register will be a 
more secure and more efficient system for keeping marriage records. It will also allow for the names 
of parents of the couple (mother / father / parent) to be included in the marriage entry and on marriage 
certificates.

 Sefton Registration Service is a member of the Registration North West Training Group which delivers 
job specific training to registrars throughout the north west. Recently a training course delivered by a 
Sefton registrar received positive feedback of 98% and 4 of our staff members attended a course on 
ceremony delivery.

CORONERS

 Philippa Marshall, Apprentice of the Year 2018, will commence her level 4 apprenticeship on 
5th September. We have also managed to secure 75% funding from the apprenticeship fund for this 
post.

Page 89

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Digital Inclusion Working Group – Update on Recommendations
	6 Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2019/20
	7 Members Welfare Reform Reference Group - Update
	8 Work Programme 2019/20, Scrutiny Review Topics and Key Decision Forward Plan
	Appendix 1 Work Programme
	Appendix 2 - selection criteria
	Appendix 3 Forward Plan

	9 Cabinet Member Report - June to August 2019
	Regulatory, Compliance & CS - August 2019


